
               

 
 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

March 17, 2015 - 7:30 p.m. 
 
City Council meeting packets are prepared several days prior to the meetings.  This information is reviewed 
and studied by the Councilmembers, eliminating lengthy discussions to gain basic understanding.                   
Timely action and short discussion on agenda items does not reflect lack of thought or analysis.                     
An informational packet is available for public inspection on our website at www.cityofevans.org and posted 
immediately on the bulletin board adjacent to the Council Chambers. 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE 
 

3. ROLL CALL   Mayor:  John Morris 
 Mayor Pro-Tem:  Jay Schaffer 
 Council:  Laura Brown 

 Mark Clark 
 Sherri Finn 
 Lance Homann 
 Brian Rudy 
 

 
4. PROCLAMATION 

A. Americanism Day Proclamation 
 

5. SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS 
 
6. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  

 
The City Council welcomes you here and thanks you for your time and concerns.  If you wish to 
address the City Council concerning issues not on the agenda, this is the time for you to do so.    
When you are recognized, please step to the podium, state your name and address then address City 
Council.  Your comments will be limited to two (2) minutes.  The City Council may not respond to your 
comments this evening, rather they may take your comments and suggestions under advisement and 
your questions may be directed to the appropriate staff person for follow-up.  Thank you! 

 
7. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
8. CONSENT AGENDA   

A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 3, 2015 
 

If you would like to address City Council,  
please place your name on the sign-up sheet  

located at the back of the council room.   
You will be recognized to speak during the  

"audience participation" portion of the agenda. 
 

http://www.cityofevans.org/


9. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Ordinance No. 619-15 Approving an Oil and Gas Lease of the City of 

Evans’ Cemetery and Park Property with Mineral Resources, Inc.           
(2nd Reading) 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Resolution No. 09-2015 Amendment to Grant agreement with DOLA for 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

B. Acceptance of DOLA Grant for Watershed Coordinator 
 

11. REPORTS 
A. City Manager 
B. City Attorney 

 
12. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (general comments) 

 
Please refer to the Audience Participation section listed at the beginning of the agenda for 
procedures on addressing City Council. 

 
13. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

CITY OF EVANS – MISSION STATEMENT 
 

 “To deliver sustainable, citizen-driven services for the health, safety, and welfare 
of the community.” 



 

 
 PROCLAMATION 
 
 

PROCLAIMING MARCH 22, 2015 AS  
“AMERICANISM DAY” IN THE  
CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

 
 
 
 WHEREAS, in this time and throughout our history, the American Republic has found 
strength in its citizens’ loyalty to the great national principles and ideals upon which this country 
was founded; and 
 
 WHEREAS, everyday Americans at home and abroad bear witness to their national 
allegiance by extending deep devotion and sacrifice, some even at the cost of their lives; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the continuing threat of terrorism on this great Nation has only helped to 
unite and strengthen America, making Americans more determined, more generous, and proud to 
meet the challenges we face in defending our freedom; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all loyal citizens should stand up and be proud  that we are Americans and 
should make it clearly known to all that our democracy will long endure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is fitting that we set aside one day in the year when every citizen may 
pause to reflect on his debt to the devotion of other Americans, and to bear witness in every 
appropriate way to his own Americanism. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, I, John Morris, Mayor of the City of Evans do hereby proclaim 
March 22, 2015 as Americanism Day in the City of Evans. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the 
official seal of the City of Evans this  17th  day of March, 2015. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:       CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
                                                               By __________________________                                             
 City Clerk        Mayor 
 



 
  
 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
  
 
DATE:   March 17, 2015 
 
AGENDA ITEM:   8.A 

   
SUBJECT: Approval of the Minutes of March 3rd City Council Meeting 
 
PRESENTED BY:  City Clerk  
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
Approval of minutes. 
  
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
N/A
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
       
N/A
  
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
"I move to approve the minutes as presented." 
  
 



 

MINUTES 
EVANS CITY COUNCIL 

March 3, 2015 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
   Mayor Morris called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 

 
PLEDGE 

 
ROLL CALL    
Present:  Mayor Morris, Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer, Council Members Brown, Finn,  
   Homann, and Rudy 
 
Absent:   Council Member Clark 
 
 
PROCLAMATION 

Mayor Morris read the proclamation designating March as “National 
Intellectual/Developmental Disabilities Awareness Month” in the City of Evans.  
Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer presented the Proclamation to Brandy Mondy, Board 
President, Arc of Weld County, her daughter Aven Mondy, and Kathi Sargent with 
the Arc of Weld County.  

 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
There was no audience participation.   

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer, made the motion, seconded by Council Member Rudy, to 
  adopt the Agenda.  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA   

A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 17, 2015 
B. Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 616-15 Right-of-Way and Dedications in Connection 

with the Final Plat of The Junction at Evans (2nd Reading) 
C. Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 617-15 Adoption of the Final Plat of The Junction at 

Evans (2nd Reading) 
D. Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 618-15 Amendment to a Planned Unit Development, 

Vintage Villas (2nd Reading) 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer made the motion, seconded by Council Member Brown, to 
adopt the Consent Agenda, with Mayor Morris abstaining from voting. 
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

     
 



Evans City Council  
Regular Meeting  
March 3, 2015    
 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Ordinance No. 619-15 Approving an Oil and Gas Lease of the City of Evans’ 

Cemetery and Park Property with Mineral Resources, Inc. (1st Reading) 
 

Scott Krob, Evans City Attorney, presented the Ordinance which approves a lease of 
the City of Evans oil and gas interest in the property beneath the City cemetery and 
park properties.  Mr. Krob explained that the City initially received two proposals for 
such a lease from Mineral Resources and Duck Creek Resources, but a third offer 
had been submitted from J3 Resources.  Mr. Krob discussed the importance of 
finalizing the lease to allow the City to receive the maximum amount of an offer and 
an early signing bonus.  He stated that if the City does not enter into a lease 
agreement for its oil and gas interest or develop those interests on its own, the City 
will likely be forced into a pooling agreement with no signing bonus and receive a 
minimum  royalty of 12 percent. 

 
Mr. Krob explained that no drilling will be done on the City’s property, but be 
accessed through directional drilling from the City Greeley.  According to Mr. Krob, 
the City will not receive the severance tax associated with this well, but the signing 
bonus will result in an up-front payment in the amount of $149,000.  Additionally, 
the royalty will be paid if and when a producing well is drilled. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer asked about the counter offer from other entities. 
 
Mr. Krob discussed the proposals from the three companies that had submitted 
leasing offers and recommended proceeding with the adoption of the Ordinance on 
First Reading due to the urgency of the mineral leases.  He explained that the final 
offer would be approved by the City Council under the second and final 
consideration of the Ordinance at the March 17th meeting.  
 
Mayor Morris requested that this item would be considered under old business for 
second and final reading on March 17th.  He talked about supporting the issue and 
the importance of adopting the Ordinance in time to receive the full benefits for the 
City.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer made the motion, seconded by Council Member Rudy, 
to approve Ordinance No. 619-15  on First Reading. 
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
  

  
REPORTS 

A. City Manager 
Aden Hogan, City Manager, updated the City Council about attending a recent 
conference for the Colorado City and County Managers Association (CCCMA).      



 

He discussed some of the sessions he attended and informed the City Council that he 
was no longer on the CCCMA board, since he is now the outgoing former-President 
of CCCMA.  Mr. Hogan also reminded the City Council about the upcoming City 
Business-2-Business Event on March 4th and invited the Council Members to attend.  
 
Mayor Morris thanked Mr. Hogan for his previous service on the CCCMA Board 
and his service on the Board of the Colorado Municipal League.  
 

 
B. City Attorney 
 Mr. Krob, City Attorney, explained that he would reserve his comments until the 
 Executive Session. 

 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  

There was no audience participation. 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
A. For the purpose of  receiving legal advice concerning negotiations for the 

purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer or sale of any real, personal, or other 
property interest, pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(a).   

 
Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer made the motion, seconded by Council Member Homann, 
to go into Executive Session for the purpose of receiving legal advice concerning 
negotiations for the purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer or sale of any real, personal, 
or other property interest, pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(a).   
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
The City Council adjourned into Executive Session at 7:44 p.m. 
 
The Executive Session convened at 7:59 p.m. 
 
Scott Krob, City Attorney, entered into the record that the reason for the Executive 
Session was satisfied according to the referenced state law and covered under 
attorney client privilege. 
 
Council Member Homann made a motion, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Schaffer, to 
authorize the City Manager to execute the settlement agreement as proposed by Mr. 
Dirks’ and drafted by the City Attorney.  
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
   The meeting adjourned at 7:59 p.m. 



Evans City Council  
Regular Meeting  
March 3, 2015    

 



________________________________________________________________________ 
 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE:   March 17, 2015 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  9.A 
 
SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE 619-15 AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN 

 OIL AND GAS LEASE OF THE CITY OF EVANS’ 
 CEMETERY AND PARK PROPERTY WITH MINERAL 
 RESOURCES, INC. 

 
PRESENTED BY:   Scott Krob, City Attorney 
________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
This ordinance approves a lease of the City of Evans oil and gas interest in the property 
beneath the City’s cemetery and park properties.  Initially, the City received the 
following two proposals for such a lease: 
 
Duck Creek Resources on behalf of Aztec Exploration 

- 5 year initial term with 5 year extension option 
- 16.67% royalty 
- $250 per acre signing bonus 

 
Mineral Resources, Inc 

- 5 year initial term with 5 year extension option 
- 16% royalty 
- $1500 per acre signing bonus 

 
Subsequently Duck Creek Resources increased its bonus offer to $1500 per acre.  After 
that Mineral Resources, Inc. increased its bonus offer to $2500 per acre. 
 
If the City does not enter into a lease agreement for its oil and gas interest or develop 
those interests on its own, the City will likely be forced into a pooling agreement.  In that 
event there is no signing bonus and the City would receive a royalty of 12%. 
 
No drilling will be done on the City’s property.  The well that will access the oil and gas 
beneath the City’s property will actually be a directional well drilled from Greeley.  
Accordingly, the City will not receive the severance tax associated with this well. 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 



FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
It is anticipated that the signing bonus will result in an up-front payment in the amount of 
$149,000.  The royalty will be paid if and when a producing well is drilled. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is staff’s recommendation that the City enter into the oil and gas lease agreement with 
Mineral Resources, Inc. as provided in the ordinance. 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
“I move to adopt Ordinance No. 619-15 on Second Reading.”  
 
“I move to deny Ordinance No. 619-15.” 
________________________________________________________________________  



CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  619-15 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN OIL AND GAS LEASE OF THE CITY OF EVANS’ 

CEMETERY AND PARK PROPERTY WITH MINERAL RESOURCES, INC. 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans, Colorado, pursuant to Colorado 
statute and the Evans City Charter, is vested with the authority of administering the affairs of the 
City of Evans, Colorado;  
 
 WHEREAS, the form of the lease has been approved by the City Attorney and the 
content of the lease has been approved by the City Manager; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City of 
Evans to enter into this lease. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The lease of the City of Evans’ oil and gas interest in the property beneath the City’s 
cemetery and park properties as set forth in the attached oil and gas lease between the City and 
Mineral Resources, Inc. is hereby approved. 
 
2. Severability. If any article, section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
Ordinance is held to be unconstitutional or invalid for any reason such decision shall not affect 
the validity or constitutionality of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council 
hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each part or parts thereof 
irrespective of the fact that any one part or parts be declared unconstitutional or invalid. 
 
3.  Repeal.  Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters embraced 
in this ordinance are hereby repealed and all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with 
the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed except that this repeal shall not affect or 
prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in violation 
of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the effective date of this ordinance. 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND PASSED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF EVANS ON THIS 3rd DAY OF MARCH, 2015. 



 
 

 

ATTEST:   CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
__________________________________ BY: ______________________________ 
 Raegan Robb, City Clerk John L. Morris, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON A SECOND READING THIS 17th DAY OF MARCH, 2015.  
 
 
ATTEST:   CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
__________________________________ BY: ______________________________ 
Raegan Robb, City Clerk John L. Morris, Mayor 
 
 
 



OIL AND GAS LEASE 
 
This Oil and Gas Lease (“Lease”) is made this _____ day of _______________________, 2015 by and between CITY OF EVANS whose address is ATTN: 

RAEGAN ROBB - CITY CLERK DEPT 1100 37 ST  EVANS, CO 80620, (“Lessor”, whether one or more) and MINERAL RESOURCES, INC., 
whose address is P.O. BOX 328, GREELEY, COLORADO 80632 (“Lessee”). 
 

WITNESSETH, For and in Consideration of TEN DOLLARS, the covenants and agreements contained herein, and other good and valuable 
consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Lessor does hereby grant, demise, lease and let exclusively unto said Lessee, with 
the exclusive rights for the purposes of mining, exploring by geophysical and other methods and operating for and producing therefrom oil and all gas of 
whatsoever nature or kind (including coalbed gas), and laying pipelines, telephone and telegraph lines, building tanks, plants, power stations, roadways and 
structures thereon to produce, save and take care of said products (including dewatering of coalbed gas wells), and the exclusive surface or subsurface rights 
and privileges related in any manner to any and all such operations, and any and all other rights and privileges necessary, incident to, or convenient for the 
operation alone or conjointly with neighboring land for such purposes, all that certain tract or tracts of land situated in Weld County,  Colorado, described to 
wit: 

SEE THE ATTACHED EXHIBIT “A” FOR A DESCRIPTION OF LANDS LOCATED IN WELD COUNTY, COLORADO 
 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, this lease is a “No Surface Occupancy” Oil and Gas Lease. It is agreed and 
understood that Lessee its successors or assigns shall not conduct any operations or locate any facilities on the surface of the leased lands. It is 
understood that Lessee, its successors or assigns shall not be allowed any access to the surface of the leased lands without written consent of 
Lessor. It is further agreed that Lessee shall have the right to drill and operate directional wells through and under said land irrespective of the 
bottom hole locations of said wells. To this end, Lessor hereby grants to Lessee a subsurface easement for all purposes associated with such 
directional wells. 
 

1.  It is agreed that this Lease shall remain in full force for a term of five (5) years from this date (“Primary Term”) and as long thereafter as oil or 
gas of whatsoever nature or kind is produced from the Premises or on acreage pooled or unitized therewith, or operations are continued as hereinafter provided.  
At any time during the Primary Term of this Lease, Lessee, at its option may make tender to Lessor payment in the amount of $100 per net mineral acre, 
thereby extending the Primary Term of this Lease by an additional five (5) years.  If, at the expiration of the Primary Term, oil or gas is not being produced 
from the Premises or on acreage pooled or unitized therewith but Lessee is then engaged in drilling, reworking or dewatering operations thereon, then this 
Lease shall continue in force so long as such operations are being continuously prosecuted.  Operations shall be considered to be continuously prosecuted if not 
more than ninety (90) days shall elapse between the completion or abandonment of one well and the beginning of operations for the drilling of a subsequent 
well.  If after discovery of oil or gas on the Premises or on acreage pooled or unitized therewith, the production thereof should cease from any cause after the 
primary term, this Lease shall not terminate if Lessee commences additional drilling, reworking or dewatering operations within ninety (90) days from date of 
cessation of production or from date of completion of a dry hole.  If oil or gas shall be discovered and produced as a result of such operations at or after the 
expiration of the Primary Term, this Lease shall continue in force so long as oil or gas is produced from the Premises or on acreage pooled or unitized 
therewith. 

2.  This is a PAID-UP LEASE.  In consideration of the payment made herewith, Lessor agrees that Lessee shall not be obligated, except as 
otherwise provided herein, to commence or continue any operations during the primary term.  Lessee may at any time or times during or after the Primary Term 
surrender this Lease as to all or any portion of the Premises and as to any strata or stratum, by delivering to Lessor or by filing for record a release or releases, 
and be relieved of all obligations thereafter accruing as to the acreage surrendered. 

3.  The royalties to be paid by Lessee are:  (a) on oil and other liquid hydrocarbons, 16% of that produced and saved from said land, the same to 
be delivered at the wells, or to the credit of Lessor into the pipeline to which the wells may be connected; Lessee may from time to time purchase any royalty 
oil in its possession, paying the market price therefore prevailing for the field where produced on the date of purchase; (b) on gas and the constituents thereof 
produced from said land and sold or used off the premises or in the manufacture of products therefrom, the market value at the well of 16% of the product sold 
or used.  On product sold at the well, the royalty shall be 16% of the net proceeds realized from such sale.  All royalties paid on gas sold or used off the 
premises or in the manufacture of products therefrom will be paid after deducting from such royalty Lessor's proportionate amount of all post-production costs, 
including but not limited to gross production and severance taxes, gathering and transportation costs from the wellhead to the point of sale, treating, 
compression, and processing.  On product sold at the well, the royalty shall be 16% of the net proceeds realized from such sale, after deducting from such 
royalty Lessor's proportionate amount of all of the above post-production costs and expenses, if any. 

4.  Where gas from a well capable of producing gas (or from a well in which dewatering operations have commenced), is not sold or used after 
the expiration of the Primary Term, Lessee shall pay or tender as royalty to Lessor at the address set forth above One Dollar ($1.00) per year per net mineral 
acre, such payment or tender to be made on or before the anniversary date of this Lease next ensuing after the expiration of ninety (90) days from the date such 
well is shut in or dewatering operations are commenced and thereafter on or before the anniversary date of this Lease during the period such well is shut in or 
dewatering operations are being conducted. 

5.  If Lessor owns a lesser interest in the Premises than the entire and undivided fee simple estate therein, then the royalties (including any shut-in 
gas royalty) herein provided for shall be paid Lessor only in the proportion which Lessor’s interest bears to the whole and undivided fee. 

6.  Lessee shall have the right to use, free of cost, gas, oil and water produced on the Premises for Lessee’s operations thereon, except water from 
the wells of Lessor. 

7.  When requested by Lessor, Lessee shall bury Lessee’s pipeline below plow depth. 
8.  No well shall be drilled nearer than 200 feet to the house or barn now on the Premises without written consent of Lessor. 
9.  Lessee shall pay for damages caused by Lessee’s operations to growing crops on the Premises. 
10.  Lessee shall have the right at any time to remove all machinery and fixtures (including casing) Lessee has placed on the Premises. 
11.  The rights of the Lessor and Lessee hereunder may be assigned in whole or part.  No change in ownership of Lessor’s interest (by assignment 

or otherwise) shall be binding on Lessee until Lessee has been furnished with notice, consisting of certified copies of all recorded instruments or documents and 
other information necessary to establish a complete chain of record title from Lessor, and then only with respect to payments thereafter made.  No other kind of 
notice, whether actual or constructive, shall be binding on Lessee.  No present or future division of Lessor’s ownership as to different portions or parcels of the 
Premises shall operate to enlarge the obligations or diminish the rights of Lessee, and all Lessee’s operations may be conducted without regard to any such 
division.  If all or any part of this Lease is assigned, no leasehold owner shall be liable for any act or omission of any other leasehold owner. 

12.  Lessee, at its option, is hereby given the right and power at any time and from time to time as a recurring right, either before or after production, 
as to all or any part of the Premises and as to any one or more of the formations thereunder, to pool or unitize the leasehold estate and the mineral estate 
covered by this Lease with other land, lease or leases in the immediate vicinity for the production of oil and gas, or separately for the production of either, when 
in Lessee’s judgment it is necessary or advisable to do so, and irrespective of whether authority similar to this exists with respect to such other land, lease or 
leases.  Likewise units previously formed to include formations not producing oil or gas may be reformed to exclude such non-producing formations.  The 
forming or reforming of any unit shall be accomplished by Lessee executing and filing of record a declaration of such unitization or reformation, which 
declaration shall describe the unit.  Any unit may include land upon which a well has theretofore been completed or upon which operations for drilling have 
theretofore been commenced.  Production, drilling, reworking or dewatering operations or a well shut in for want of a market anywhere on a unit which 
includes all or a part of this Lease shall be treated as if it were production, drilling, reworking or dewatering operations or a well shut in for want of a market 
under this Lease.  In lieu of the royalties elsewhere herein specified, including shut-in gas royalties, Lessor shall receive royalties on production from such unit 
only on the portion of such production allocated to this Lease; such allocation shall be that proportion of the unit production that the total number of surface 
acres covered by this Lease and included in the Unit bears to the total number of surface acres in such Unit.  In addition to the foregoing, Lessee shall have the 
right to unitize, pool, or combine all or any part of the Premises as to one or more of the formations thereunder with other lands in the same general area by 
entering into a cooperative or unit plan of development or operation approved by any governmental authority and, from time to time, with like approval, to 
modify, change or terminate any such plan or agreement and, in such event, the terms, conditions and provisions of this Lease shall be deemed modified to 
conform to the terms, conditions, and provisions of such approved cooperative or unit plan of development or operation and, particularly, all drilling and 
development requirements of this Lease, express or implied, shall be satisfied by compliance with the drilling and development requirements of such plan or 
agreement, and this Lease shall not terminate or expire during the life of such plan or agreement.  In the event that the Premises or any part thereof, shall 
hereafter be operated under any such cooperative or unit plan of development or operation whereby the production therefrom is allocated to different portions 
of the land covered by said plan, then the production allocated to any particular tract of land shall, for the purpose of computing the royalties to be paid 
hereunder to Lessor, be regarded as having been produced from the particular tract of land to which it is allocated and not to any other tract of land; and royalty 
payments to be made hereunder to Lessor shall be based upon production only as so allocated.  Lessor shall formally express Lessor’s consent to any 
cooperative or unit plan of development or operation adopted by Lessee and approved by any governmental agency by executing the same upon request of 
Lessee. 



13.  All express or implied covenants of this Lease shall be subject to all Federal and State Laws, Executive Orders, Rules or Regulations, and this 
Lease shall not be terminated, in whole or in part, nor Lessee held liable in damages, for failure to comply therewith if compliance is prevented by, or if such 
failure is the result of, any such Law, Order, Rule or Regulation.  Any delay or interruption caused by storm, flood, act of God or other event of force majeure 
shall not be counted against Lessee.  If, due to the above causes or any cause whatsoever beyond the control of Lessee, Lessee is prevented from conducting 
operations hereunder, such time shall not be counted against Lessee, and this Lease shall be extended for a period of time equal to the time Lessee was so 
prevented, anything in this Lease to the contrary notwithstanding. 

14.  Lessor hereby agrees that the Lessee shall have the right at any time to redeem for Lessor by payment any mortgages, taxes or other liens on the 
above described lands, in the event of default of payment by Lessor, and be subrogated to the rights of the holder thereof, and the undersigned Lessors, for 
themselves and their heirs, successors and assigns, hereby surrender and release all right of dower and homestead in the Premises, insofar as said right of dower 
and homestead may in any way affect the purposes for which this Lease is made, as recited herein. 

15.  Should any one or more the parties named as Lessor herein fail to execute this Lease, it shall nevertheless be binding upon all such parties who 
do execute it as Lessor.  The word “Lessor”, as used in this Lease, shall mean any one or more or all of the parties who execute this Lease as Lessor.  All the 
provisions of this Lease shall be binding on the heirs, successors and assigns of Lessor and Lessee. 

16.  If at any time within the primary term of this lease and while the same remains in force and effect, Lessor receives any bona fide offer, 
acceptable to Lessor, to grant an additional lease (top lease) covering all or part of the aforedescribed lands, lessee shall have the continuing option by meeting 
any such offer to acquire such top lease.  Any offer must be in writing, and must set forth the proposed Lessee’s name, bonus consideration and royalty 
consideration to be paid for such lease, and include a copy of the lease form to be utilized which form should reflect all pertinent and relevant terms and 
conditions of the top lease.  Lessee shall have fifteen (15) days after receipt, from Lessor, of a complete copy of any such offer to advise Lessor in writing of its 
election to enter into an oil and gas lease with Lessor on equivalent terms and conditions.  If Lessee fails to notify Lessor within the aforesaid fifteen (15) day 
period of its election to meet any such bona fide offer, Lessor shall have the right to accept said offer. 

17.  Lessor makes no warranty as of Lessor’s  title as to the interest hereby granted to Lessee and Lessee has relied solely on its own investigation of 
such title. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed as of the date first above written. 

 
 

City of Evans:      
 

 
 ________________________________________________________ ________________________________________________________ 
           
 
 
 ________________________________________________________ ________________________________________________________ 
            
 
 

________________________________________________________ ________________________________________________________ 
                  
 
 
  
     

 
STATE OF  )    
 ) SS. 
COUNTY OF      ) 
 
BEFORE ME, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, on this                 day of                                                          2015, 
personally appeared _____________________________________ as the ________________________________ of The City of 
Evans, to me known to be the identical persons described in and who executed the within and foregoing instrument of writing, acknowledged to me that 
they duly executed the same as their free and voluntary act and deed  for  the uses and purposes therein set forth. 
   
               IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial seal the day and year last above written. 
 
 
 My Commission Expires ___________________________                           _____________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                                                                                                Notary Public. 

 
   
 
                                                                                                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
When recorded return to: 

 
Mineral Resources, Inc. 

P.O. Box 328  
Greeley, CO 80632

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
EXHIBIT  “A” 

 
 
 

TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 65 WEST, 6TH P.M. 
SECTION 19: 
 

PART OF THE NE/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: A PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN LOT 1 OF THE 
SOUTHEAST ¼  OF THE NORTHEAST ¼  OF AFORESAID SECTION 
ACCORDING TO THE SUBDIVISION LANDS OF THE ST. LOUIS WERSTN 
COLONY, BEING MORE PARTICULARY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:   
BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF SOUTHEAST ¼, WHICH 
IS 108.00 FEET SOUTH OF THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE 
SOUTHEAST ¼;  
THENCE S 89º50’00” W 30.00 FEET; 
THENCE S 89º50’00” W 100.00 FEET; 
THENCE S 00º09’00” E 50.00 FEET; 
THENCE N 89º50’00” E 100.00 FEET; 
THENCE N 00º09’00” W 50.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING,     
ALSO KNOWN AS 3001 11TH AVENUE, CITY OF  EVANS, COUNTY OF 
WELD, STATE OF COLORADO 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.1148 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 
PART OF THE NE4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOW:  LOT (1) IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST 
QUARTER OF SECTION AFORSAID ACCORDING TO THE SUBDIVISION 
LANDS OF THE ST. LOUIS WERSTERN COLONY, ALSO KNOWN AS THE 
EVANS CEMETERY, LOCATED IN THE CITY OF EVANS, COUNTY OF 
WELD, STATE OF COLORADO,  
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS THERTO 
OR IN SIAD SECTION. 
CONTAINING 8.1921 ACRES, MORE OF LESS 
 

: 
 

PART OF THE SE/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: LOT 15, BLOCK 7, SUNDOWN ESTATES 3RD FILING, ALSO 
THAT PART OF VACATED 15TH AVE PARTIAL CUL-DE-SAC, LOCATED 
IN THE CITY OF EVANS, COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF COLORADO 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.1999 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

 PART OF THE SE/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: LOT 11, BLOCK 7, SUNDOWN ESTATES 3RD FILING, ALSO 
THAT PART OF VACATED 15TH AVE PARTIAL CUL-DE-SAC, CITY OF 
EVANS, COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF COLORADO 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.2248 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

 PART OF THE SE/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: LOT 12, BLOCK 7, SUNDOWN ESTATES 3RD FILING, ALSO 
THAT PART OF VACATED 15TH AVE PARTIAL CUL-DE-SAC, CITY OF 
EVANS, COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF COLORADO 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.2877 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

 PART OF THE SE/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: LOT 13, BLOCK 7, SUNDOWN ESTATES 3RD FILING, ALSO 
THAT PART OF VACATED 15TH AVE PARTIAL CUL-DE-SAC, CITY OF 
EVANS, COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF COLORADO 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.3095 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 



 PART OF THE SE/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: LOT 14, BLOCK 7, SUNDOWN ESTATES 3RD FILING, ALSO 
THAT PART OF VACATED 15TH AVE PARTIAL CUL-DE-SAC, CITY OF 
EVANS, COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF COLORADO 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.3703 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

 PART OF THE SE/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: PARCEL A, BLOCK 10 PLATTE VALLEY SUB 1ST FILING, 
CITY OF EVANS, COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF COLORADO 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.6679 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

 PART OF THE SE/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: PARCEL B, PLATTE VALLEY SUB 2ND FILING, CITY OF 
EVANS, COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF COLORADO 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.8044 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

 PART OF THE SW/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: BLOCK 1, VILLAGE SUB, CITY OF EVANS, COUNTY OF 
WELD, STATE OF COLORADO 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  3.58   ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

 PART OF THE SW/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: BLOCK 11, CHAPPELOW VILLAGE, WHICH IS THE 
VACATION AND FIRST REPLAT OF UNC SUBDIVISION BLOCK 4 AND 
BLOCK 5, IN THE CITY OF EVANS, COUNTY OF WELD, STATE OF 
COLORADO 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  7.67   ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

  
SECTION 20: 
 

PART OF THE SW/4SW/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: EVS PT SW4 23-5-65 BEING PARTS OF LOTS 5-9 INCLUSIVE, 
BLOCK 174 EVANS BEG SE COR, BLOCK 174 SOUTH 89D29'W 58.46' 
CURVE TO R (R=15') CHORD=NORTH 36D39W 24.23' NORTH 17D12'E 
238.98' S0D31'E 247.22' TPOB ALSO LOTS 13-18 INCLUSIVE, BLOCK 174 
EVANS BEG NW COR , BLOCK 174 NORTH 89 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.6016 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

 PART OF THE SW/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: EVS 31/32 TRACT D 31ST/32ND STREET SUB, ALSO KNOWN 
AS 32 STREET EVANS 80620 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.1    ACRES, MORE OR LESS 

  
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: PART OF THE 
EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 20 OF 
TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 65 WEST OF THE 6TH P.M., BEING LOTS 3 
THROUGH 10 AND CLOSED 80' STREET WEST OF THE ADJACENT TO 
SAID LOTS 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING 27.32   ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

  



SECTION 29: 
 

PART OF THE NW/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: EVS 12984 LOT 18, BLOCK 20 ALSO VACATED 10' OF 
DENVER STREET ADJ TO ALSO VACATED 10' OF 40TH STREET ADJ TO, 
ALSO KNOWN AS EVANS 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.0964 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

 PART OF THE NW/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: EVS 13315 LOT A, BLOCK 4, ALSO INC VACATED 10' OF 
CENTRAL STREET AND 38TH STREET ADJ TO 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.1045 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

 PART OF THE NW/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: EVS 12987 LOT 22-23-24, BLOCK 20 ALSO VACATED 10' OF 
DENVER STREET ADJ TO, ALSO KNOWN AS 3916 DENVER STREET 
EVANS 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.2066 ACRES, MORE OR LESS 

 PART OF THE NW/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: EVS 13348, BLOCK 24 & VAC STATE STREET (AKA STATE 
HWY 3) & VAC PLATTED ROW LYING W OF WLY ROW OF THE UPRR & 
ALL THAT PT OF THE CITY OF EVANS LYING S OF THE SLY ROW LN OF 
40TH STREET (PLATTED AS SITH ST) AND LYING W OF THE WLY ROW 
LN OF THE UPRR BEING A LN 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.9618 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

 PART OF THE NW/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: EVS 13068 ALL, BLOCK 1, & VAC NORTH 10' OF 38TH STREET 
ADJ TO & VAC EAST 10' OF GOLDEN STREET & VAC W10' OF EMPIRE 
STREET ADJ TO & VAC N/S ALLEY, ALSO KNOWN AS 3700 GOLDEN 
STREET EVANS 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  3.5904 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

 PART OF THE NW/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: EVS RR-P RAILROAD PARK LYING ADJ TO ELY R/W UPR & 
WLY R/W OF DENVER STREET & BETWEEN 39 STREET 40 STREET ALSO 
VACATED 10' OF DENVER STREET ADJ TO ALSO VACATED 10' OF 40TH 
STREET ADJ TO, ALSO KNOWN AS EVANS 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  1.6368 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

 PART OF THE NW/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: EVS 12963 ALL, BLOCK 18 ALSO VACATED 10' OF BOULDER 
STREET ADJ TO ALSO VACATED 10' OF 40TH STREET ADJ TO ALSO 
VACATED 10' OF GOLDEN STREET ADJ TO ALSO VACATED 10' OF 39TH 
STREET ADJ TO (PARK),  
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  3.67   ACRES, MORE OR LESS  

 
  
SECTION 30: 
 

PART OF THE NE/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: SOUTH 10' L18 BLK143 & SOUTH 10' EAST 10' OF VAC 
ALLEY ADJ TO L18 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.031  ACRES, MORE OR LESS 



  
PART OF THE NE/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: EVS 3PIC OUTLOT A PLATTE INDUSTRIAL CENTER 3RD 
FG, ALSO KNOWN AS CARSON AVENUE EVANS 80620 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.0819 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 
PART OF THE NE/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: EVS 13394-G EAST 100' SOUTH 5' LOT 8 & EAST 100' LOT 9-
10 & EAST 100' NORTH 5' LOT 11, BLOCK 117 ROBINSON SUB ALSO 
VAC W10' OF BELMONT STREET ADJ TO  
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.1515 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 
PART OF THE NE/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: EVS 4PIC OTLT A, BLOCK 1, PLATTE INDUSTRIAL CENTER 
4TH FG, ALSO KNOWN AS  CARSON AVENUE EVANS 80620 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.1675 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

 PART OF THE NE/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: EVS 3GM3, BLOCK 3, GREEN MEADOW SUB 3RD FILING EC 
SOUTH 20' FOR 42 ST 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.5    ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
PART OF THE NE/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: EVS 1GM-B PARCEL B GREEN MEADOW SUB 1ST FILING, 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.590    ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 
PART OF THE NE/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: EVS 3GM4 , BLOCK 4, GREEN MEADOW SUB 3RD FILING 
EC SOUTH 20' FOR 42 ST 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  0.64   ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 
PART OF THE NE/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: EVS 2GM-A TRACT A GREEN MEADOW SUB 2ND FILING, 
ALSO KNOWN AS EVANS 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  1.71   ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

 PART OF THE NE/4 BEING MORE PARTICULARLY  DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: EVS PT NW4 29 5 65 / PT NE4 30 5 65 BEING LOT 1 THRU 7 & 
LOT 30 THRU 36 VACATED, BLOCK 9, AND LOT 1 THRU 7 & LOT 30 
THRU 36 VACATED, BLOCK 122 TOGETHER WITH SOUTH 2 VACATED 
8TH STREET ADJ TO AND ALL THAT PT OF VACATED MC COOK 
STREET AND EAST 2 VACATED LATHAM STREE 
INCLUDING ANY PARCELS OR STRIPS OF LAND CONTIGUOUS 
THERETO OR IN SAID SECTION. 
CONTAINING  3.4991 ACRES, MORE OR LESS  
 

 CONTAINING A TOTAL OF    59.7162  ACRES, MORE OR LESS (the “premises) 

 



 
 

  
 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
DATE: March 17, 2015  
 
AGENDA ITEM: 10.A  
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Resolution No. 09-2015 Authorizing Approval of 

Amendment #1 to the Agreement between the State of Colorado 
Department of Local Affairs and the City of Evans 

 
PRESENTED BY: Scott Krob, City Attorney 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
The City of Evans was awarded and accepted a grant by the State of Colorado Department of 
Local Affairs in the amount of $1,320,996 to be used to partially pay for the design on the new 
combined wastewater treatment facility. Following the acceptance in November of 2014, the 
Parties discovered that the Grant Agreement had inadvertently been assigned to the wrong 
funding source. As executed, the Grant Agreement indicates that the Grant Funds for the Project 
will come from the Local Government Severance Tax Fund (C.R.S. 39-29-110) however it was 
the State’s intent that the Grant Funds come from the Federal Mineral Leasing Fund            
(C.R.S. 34-63-101). The Parties are in agreement that this error should be corrected prior to the 
receipt or processing of any payment reimbursement requests. This Amendment amends the 
Grant Agreement and all associated Exhibits and correspondence to reflect the correct and 
intended source of Grant Funds. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
  
The City of Evans staff recommends that the City Council approve the grant agreement 
amendment between the State of Colorado Department of Local Affairs and the City of Evans. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  
 
“I move to approve Resolution No. 09-2015.” 
 
“I move to deny the adoption of Resolution No. 09-2015” 



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 1 of 3 
Effective Date: 1/6/09-Rev 5/4/10 

 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 

 

Amendment #:  1 Encumbrance #: F15S7597 

Original Contract CMS or CLIN #:  74605 Amendment CMS #:  77506 

 

1) PARTIES 
This Amendment to the above-referenced Original Contract (hereinafter called the Contract) is 
entered into by and between the CITY OF EVANS (hereinafter called “Grantee” or “Contractor”), and 
the STATE OF COLORADO (hereinafter called the “State”) acting by and through the Department of 
Local Affairs, Division of Local Governments, (hereinafter called the “DOLA”). 

2) EFFECTIVE DATE AND ENFORCEABILITY 
This Amendment shall not be effective or enforceable until it is approved and signed by the Colorado 
State Controller or designee (hereinafter called the “Effective Date”). The State shall not be liable to 
pay or reimburse Contractor for any performance hereunder including, but not limited to, costs or 
expenses incurred, or be bound by any provision hereof prior to the Effective Date. 

3) FACTUAL RECITALS 
The Parties entered into the Contract for completion of the design of a wastewater treatment plant. 
Following final execution of this Contract, the Parties discovered that the Grant Agreement had 
inadvertently been assigned to the wrong funding source.  As executed, the Grant Agreement 
indicates that the Grant Funds for the Project will come from the Local Government Severance Tax 
Fund (C.R.S. 39-29-110) however it was the State’s intent that the Grant Funds come from the 
Federal Mineral Leasing Fund (C.R.S. 34-63-101).  The Parties are in agreement that this error 
should be corrected prior to the receipt or processing of any payment reimbursement requests.  This 
Amendment amends the Grant Agreement and all associated Exhibits and correspondence to reflect 
the correct and intended source of Grant Funds. 

4) CONSIDERATION - COLORADO SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
The Parties acknowledge that the mutual promises and covenants contained herein and other good 
and valuable consideration are sufficient and adequate to support this Amendment. The Parties agree 
to replacing the Colorado Special Provisions with the most recent version (if such have been updated 
since the Contract and any modification thereto were effective) as part consideration for this 
Amendment.  

5) LIMITS OF EFFECT 
This Amendment is incorporated by reference into the Contract, and the Contract and all prior 
amendments thereto, if any, remain in full force and effect except as specifically modified herein. 

6) MODIFICATIONS 
The Contract and all prior amendments thereto, if any, are modified as follows:  
 
a. Grant Agreement, Cover Page, Identification #s is modified by deleting the Encumbrance #: 

 

“Encumbrance #: F15S7597 (DOLA’s primary identification #)” 

 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 
 

“Encumbrance #: F15MLG7597 (DOLA’s primary identification #)” 

 
  



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 2 of 3 
Effective Date: 1/6/09-Rev 5/4/10 

 
b. Grant Agreement, Cover Page, Program & Funding Information: is modified by deleting the Funding 

Source: 
 

“Funding Source: State Funds” 

 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 
 

“Funding Source: Federal Funds” 

 
 

c. Grant Agreement, Cover Page, Program & Funding Information: is modified by deleting the Catalog of 
Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number (if federal funds): 
 

“Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number (if federal funds): N/A” 

 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 
 

“Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number (if federal funds): 15.227” 

 
 

d. Grant Agreement, Cover Page, Program & Funding Information: is modified by deleting the Funding 
Account Codes: 
 

“Funding Account Codes: 152 FBA0 127 5110” 

 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 
 

“Funding Account Codes: 153 FAA0 128 5110” 

 
 

e. Grant Agreement, Section 3, Recitals 
Subsection A, Authority, Appropriation, and Approval is modified by deleting the 1

st
 sentence: 

 
“Authority to enter into this Grant exists in C.R.S. 24-32-106 and 29-3.5-101 and funds have been 
budgeted, appropriated and otherwise made available pursuant to C.R.S. 39-29-110 (Local Government 
Severance Tax Fund) and a sufficient unencumbered balance thereof remains available for payment.” 
 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 
 
“Authority to enter into this Grant exists in C.R.S. 24-32-106 and 29-3.5-101 and funds have been 
budgeted, appropriated and otherwise made available pursuant to C.R.S. 34-63-101 (Federal Mineral 
Leasing Fund) and a sufficient unencumbered balance thereof remains available for payment.” 
 

7) START DATE 
This Amendment shall take effect on the later of its Effective Date or March 10, 2015. 

8) ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 
Except for the Special Provisions, in the event of any conflict, inconsistency, variance, or contradiction 
between the provisions of this Amendment and any of the provisions of the Contract, the provisions of 
this Amendment shall in all respects supersede, govern, and control. The most recent version of the 
Special Provisions incorporated into the Contract or any amendment shall always control other 
provisions in the Contract or any amendments.  

9) AVAILABLE FUNDS 
Financial obligations of the state payable after the current fiscal year are contingent upon funds for 
that purpose being appropriated, budgeted, or otherwise made available. 
 



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 3 of 3 
Effective Date: 1/6/09-Rev 5/4/10 

 
 

 

THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE EXECUTED THIS AMENDMENT 

 
* Persons signing for Contractor hereby swear and affirm that they are authorized to act on Contractor’s 

behalf and acknowledge that the State is relying on their representations to that effect. 
 

 

CONTRACTOR  
CITY OF EVANS 

 
 

 
By:__________________________________________ 
         Name of Authorized Individual 
 
Title:_________________________________________ 
         Official Title of Authorized Individual 
 
 
______________________________________________ 

*Signature 
 

Date:________________ 
 

STATE OF COLORADO 
John W. Hickenlooper, GOVERNOR 

 
DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL AFFAIRS 

 
 
By:___________________________________________ 

Executive Director 
 

Date:________________ 
 
 

PRE-APPROVED FORM CONTRACT REVIEWER 
 

By:__________________________________________ 
        Bret Hillberry, State Grants Program Manager 

 
Date:________________ 
 

 
 

 

ALL CONTRACTS REQUIRE APPROVAL BY THE STATE CONTROLLER 
 

CRS §24-30-202 requires the State Controller to approve all State Contracts. This Contract is not valid until 
signed and dated below by the State Controller or delegate. Contractor is not authorized to begin 

performance until such time. If Contractor begins performing prior thereto, the State of Colorado is not 
obligated to pay Contractor for such performance or for any goods and/or services provided hereunder. 

 

STATE CONTROLLER 
Robert Jaros, CPA 

By:___________________________________________ 

Janet Miks, Controller Delegate  
 

Date:_____________________ 

 
 

 



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

 

 

 

Summary 

Award Amount: $1,320,996.00 

Identification #s:  

Encumbrance #:  F15S7597 (DOLA’s primary identification #) 

Contract Management System #: 74605 (State of Colorado’s tracking #) 

  

Project Information:  
Project/Award Number: EIAF 7597 

Project Name: Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Performance Period: Start Date:       End Date: 07/31/16 

Brief Description of Project / 

Assistance: 

The Project consists of completion of the design of a wastewater treatment 

plant.  

  

Program & Funding Information: 
Program Name Energy & Mineral Impact Assistance Fund 

Funding source: State Funds 

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Number (if federal funds): N/A 

Funding Account Codes: 152 FBA0 127 5110       

             

             

   

  

GRANT AGREEMENT 

 

Between 

 

STATE OF COLORADO 

DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL AFFAIRS 

 

And 

 

CITY OF EVANS 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 2 of 21 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
1. PARTIES .............................................................................................................................................................................. 2 
2. EFFECTIVE DATE AND NOTICE OF NONLIABILITY. ................................................................................................ 2 
3. RECITALS ........................................................................................................................................................................... 3 
4. DEFINITIONS ..................................................................................................................................................................... 3 
5. TERM ................................................................................................................................................................................... 4 
6. STATEMENT OF WORK ................................................................................................................................................... 5 
7. PAYMENTS TO GRANTEE............................................................................................................................................... 5 
8. REPORTING - NOTIFICATION ........................................................................................................................................ 6 
9. GRANTEE RECORDS ........................................................................................................................................................ 7 
10. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION-STATE RECORDS ................................................................................................. 7 
11. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST ............................................................................................................................................ 8 
12. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES .................................................................................................................. 8 
13. INSURANCE ..................................................................................................................................................................... 9 
14. BREACH .......................................................................................................................................................................... 11 
15. REMEDIES ...................................................................................................................................................................... 12 
16. NOTICES and REPRESENTATIVES ............................................................................................................................. 14 
17. RIGHTS IN DATA, DOCUMENTS, AND COMPUTER SOFTWARE ........................................................................ 14 
18. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY ................................................................................................................................... 15 
19. STATEWIDE CONTRACT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM .............................................................................................. 15 
20. RESTRICTION ON PUBLIC BENEFITS ....................................................................................................................... 15 
21. GENERAL PROVISIONS ............................................................................................................................................... 16 
22. COLORADO SPECIAL PROVISIONS .......................................................................................................................... 19 
SIGNATURE PAGE .............................................................................................................................................................. 21 
EXHIBIT A – APPLICABLE LAWS 

EXHIBIT B – SCOPE OF PROJECT 

EXHIBIT C – RESERVED. 

EXHIBIT D – RESERVED. 

EXHIBIT E – PROJECT PERFORMANCE PLAN 

EXHIBIT F – RESERVED. 

EXHIBIT G – FORM OF OPTION LETTER 

FORM 1 – RESERVED. 

 

 
 

 

1. PARTIES 

This Agreement (hereinafter called “Grant”) is entered into by and between the CITY OF EVANS (hereinafter 

called “Grantee”), and the STATE OF COLORADO acting by and through the Department of Local Affairs for 

the benefit of the Division of Local Government (hereinafter called the “State” or “DOLA”). 

2. EFFECTIVE DATE AND NOTICE OF NONLIABILITY. 

This Grant shall not be effective or enforceable until it is approved and signed by the Colorado State Controller 

or designee (hereinafter called the “Effective Date”). The State shall not be liable to pay or reimburse Grantee 

for any performance hereunder, including, but not limited to costs or expenses incurred, or be bound by any 

provision hereof prior to (see checked option(s) below): 

A.  The Effective Date.  

B.  The Effective Date; provided, however, that all Project costs, if specifically authorized by the federal 

funding authority, incurred on or after March 1, 20XX, may be submitted for reimbursement as if 

incurred after the Effective Date. 

C.  insert date for authorized Pre-agreement Costs (as such term is defined in §4) , if specifically 

authorized by the funding authority . Such costs may be submitted for reimbursement as if incurred after 

the Effective Date.  

  

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 3 of 21 

3. RECITALS 

A. Authority, Appropriation, and Approval 

Authority to enter into this Grant exists in C.R.S. 24-32-106 and 29-3.5-101 and funds have been budgeted, 

appropriated and otherwise made available pursuant to C.R.S. 39-29-110 (Local Government Severance 

Tax Fund) and a sufficient unencumbered balance thereof remains available for payment. Required 

approvals, clearance and coordination have been accomplished from and with appropriate agencies. 

B. Consideration 

The Parties acknowledge that the mutual promises and covenants contained herein and other good and 

valuable consideration are sufficient and adequate to support this Grant. 

C. Purpose 

The purpose of this Grant is described in Exhibit B. 

D. References 

All references in this Grant to sections (whether spelled out or using the § symbol), subsections, exhibits or 

other attachments, are references to sections, subsections, exhibits or other attachments contained herein or 

incorporated as a part hereof, unless otherwise noted. 

4. DEFINITIONS 

The following terms as used herein shall be construed and interpreted as follows: 

A. Budget 

“Budget” means the budget for the Project and/or Work described in Exhibit B. 

B. Closeout Certification 

“Closeout Certification” means the Grantee’s certification of completion of Work submitted on a form 

provided by the State. 

C. Evaluation 

“Evaluation” means the process of examining Grantee’s Work and rating it based on criteria established in 

§6 and Exhibit B. 

D. Exhibits and other Attachments 

The following are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein: 

i. Exhibit A (Applicable Laws) 

ii. Exhibit B (Scope of Project) 

iii. Exhibit E (Project Performance Plan) 

iv. Exhibit G (Form of Option Letter) 

E. Goods 

“Goods” means tangible material acquired, produced, or delivered by Grantee either separately or in 

conjunction with the Services Grantee renders hereunder.  

F. Grant 

“Grant” means this agreement, its terms and conditions, attached exhibits, documents incorporated by 

reference pursuant to the terms of this Grant, and any future modifying agreements, exhibits, attachments 

or references incorporated herein pursuant to Colorado State law, Fiscal Rules, and State Controller 

Policies. 

G. Grant Funds 

“Grant Funds” means available funds payable by the State to Grantee pursuant to this Grant.  

H. Party or Parties 

“Party” means the State or Grantee and “Parties” means both the State and Grantee. 

I. Pay Request(s) 

“Pay Request(s)” means the Grantee’s reimbursement request(s) submitted on form(s) provided by the 

State. 

J. Pre-agreement costs 

“Pre-agreement costs,” when applicable, means the costs incurred on or after the date as specified in §2 

above, and prior to the Effective Date of this Grant. Such costs shall have been detailed in Grantee’s grant 

application and specifically authorized by the State and incorporated herein pursuant to Exhibit B. 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 4 of 21 

K. Project 

“Project” means the overall project described in Exhibit B, which includes the Work. 

L. Project Closeout 

“Project Closeout” means the submission by the Grantee to the State of an actual final Pay Request, a final 

Status Report and a Closeout Certification. 

M. Program 

“Program” means the grant program specified on the first page of this Grant that provides the funding for 

this Grant. 

N. Review 

“Review” means examining Grantee’s Work to ensure that it is adequate, accurate, correct and in 

accordance with the criteria established in §6 and Exhibit B. 

O. Services 

“Services” means the required services to be performed by Grantee pursuant to this Grant.  

P. Status Report(s) 

“Status Report(s)” means the Grantee’s status report(s) on the Work/Project submitted on form(s) provided 

by the State. 

Q. Subcontractor 

“Subcontractor” means third-parties, if any, engaged by Grantee to carry out specific vendor related 

services. 

R. Subgrantee 

“Subgrantee” means third-parties, if any, engaged by Grantee to aid in performance of its obligations. 

Subgrantee is bound by the same overall programmatic and grant requirements as Grantee. 

S. Subject Property 

“Subject Property” means the real property, if any, for which Grant Funds are used to acquire, construct, or 

rehabilitate. 

T. Substantial Progress in the Work 

“Substantial Progress in the Work” means Grantee meets all deliverables and performance measures within 

the time frames specified in Exhibit E. 

U. Work  

“Work” means the tasks and activities Grantee is required to perform to fulfill its obligations under this 

Grant and Exhibit B, including the performance of the Services and delivery of the Goods. 

V. Work Product  

“Work Product” means the tangible or intangible results of Grantee’s Work, including, but not limited to, 

software, research, reports, studies, data, photographs, negatives or other finished or unfinished documents, 

drawings, models, surveys, maps, materials, or work product of any type, including drafts. 

5. TERM 

A. Initial Term-Work Commencement 

Unless otherwise permitted in §2 above, the Parties’ respective performances under this Grant shall 

commence on the Effective Date. This Grant shall terminate on July 31, 2016 unless sooner terminated or 

further extended as specified elsewhere herein. 

B. Two Month Extension 

The State, at its sole discretion upon written notice to Grantee as provided in §16, may unilaterally extend 

the term of this Grant for a period not to exceed two months if the Parties are negotiating a replacement 

Grant (and not merely seeking a term extension) at or near the end of any initial term or any extension 

thereof. The provisions of this Grant in effect when such notice is given, including, but not limited to 

prices, rates, and delivery requirements, shall remain in effect during the two month extension. The two-

month extension shall immediately terminate when and if a replacement Grant is approved and signed by 

the Colorado State Controller. 

  

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 5 of 21 

6. STATEMENT OF WORK 

A. Completion 

Grantee shall complete the Work and its other obligations as described herein and in Exhibit B. Except as 

specified in §2 above, the State shall not be liable to compensate Grantee for any Work performed prior to 

the Effective Date or after the termination of this Grant. 

B. Goods and Services 

Grantee shall procure Goods and Services necessary to complete the Work. Such procurement shall be 

accomplished using the Grant Funds and shall not increase the maximum amount payable hereunder by the 

State. 

C. Employees 

All persons employed by Grantee or Subgrantees shall be considered Grantee’s or Subgrantees’ 

employee(s) for all purposes hereunder and shall not be employees of the State for any purpose as a result 

of this Grant. 

7. PAYMENTS TO GRANTEE 

The State shall, in accordance with the provisions of this §7, pay Grantee in the following amounts and using the 

methods set forth below: 

A. Maximum Amount 

The maximum amount payable under this Grant to Grantee by the State is $1,320,996.00 (ONE MILLION 

THREE HUNDRED TWENTY THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED NINETY SIX and XX/100 

DOLLARS), as determined by the State from available funds. Grantee agrees to provide any additional 

funds required for the successful completion of the Work. Payments to Grantee are limited to the unpaid 

obligated balance of the Grant as set forth in Exhibit B.  

B. Payment 

i. Advance, Interim and Final Payments 

Any payment allowed under this Grant or in Exhibit B shall comply with State Fiscal Rules and be 

made in accordance with the provisions of this Grant or such Exhibit. Grantee shall initiate any 

payment requests by submitting invoices to the State in the form and manner set forth and approved by 

the State. 

ii. Interest 

The State shall not pay interest on Grantee invoices. The State shall fully pay each invoice within 45 

days of receipt thereof if the amount invoiced represents performance by Grantee previously accepted 

by the State. 

iii. Available Funds-Contingency-Termination 

The State is prohibited by law from making fiscal commitments beyond the term of the State’s current 

fiscal year. Therefore, Grantee’s compensation is contingent upon the continuing availability of State 

appropriations as provided in the Colorado Special Provisions, set forth below. If federal funds are 

used with this Grant in whole or in part, the State’s performance hereunder is contingent upon the 

continuing availability of such funds. Payments pursuant to this Grant shall be made only from 

available funds encumbered for this Grant and the State’s liability for such payments shall be limited 

to the amount remaining of such encumbered funds. If State or federal funds are not fully 

appropriated, or otherwise become unavailable for this Grant, the State may immediately terminate 

this Grant in whole or in part to the extent of funding reduction without further liability in accordance 

with the provisions herein. 

iv. Erroneous Payments 

At the State’s sole discretion, payments made to Grantee in error for any reason, including, but not 

limited to overpayments or improper payments, and unexpended or excess funds received by Grantee, 

may be recovered from Grantee by deduction from subsequent payments under this Grant or other 

grants or agreements between the State and Grantee or by other appropriate methods and collected as a 

debt due to the State. Such funds shall not be paid to any person or entity other than the State. 

C. Use of Funds 

Grant Funds shall be used only for eligible costs identified herein and/or in Exhibit B.  

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 6 of 21 

i. Budget Line Item Adjustments.  

Modifications to uses of such Grant Funds shall be made in accordance with §4.4 of Exhibit B. For 

line item adjustments over 10% but less than 24.99% (a “Minor Line Item Adjustment”) which are 

approved, the State shall provide written notice to Grantee in a form substantially equivalent to 

Exhibit G (each an “Option Letter”). If exercised, the provisions of the Option Letter shall become 

part of and be incorporated into this Grant.  

ii. Overall Budget Adjustments.  

Modifications to the overall Budget shall be made in accordance with §4.5 of Exhibit B. For overall 

Budget adjustments less than 24.99% (a “Minor Budget Adjustment”) which are approved, the State 

shall provide written notice to Grantee in an Option Letter. If exercised, the provisions of the Option 

Letter shall become part of and be incorporated into this Grant. 

iii. Setting Final Initial Budget.  

All requests by the Grantee to align the initial overall Budget with current market conditions shall be 

made in accordance with §4.5.1.1 of Exhibit B. If such True-up Budget Proposal (as such term is 

defined in §4.5.1.1 of Exhibit B) is approved, the State shall provide written notice to Grantee in an 

Option Letter. If exercised, the provisions of the Option Letter shall become part of and be 

incorporated into this Grant. 

D. Matching/Leveraged Funds 

Grantee shall provide matching and/or leveraged funds in accordance with Exhibit B.  

8. REPORTING - NOTIFICATION 

Reports, Evaluations, and Reviews required under this §8 shall be in accordance with the procedures of and in 

such form as prescribed by the State and in accordance with §19, if applicable. 

A. Performance, Progress, Personnel, and Funds 

State shall submit a report to the Grantee upon expiration or sooner termination of this Grant, containing an 

Evaluation and Review of Grantee’s performance and the final status of Grantee's obligations hereunder. In 

addition, Grantee shall comply with all reporting requirements, if any, set forth in Exhibit B. 

B. Litigation Reporting 

Within 10 days after being served with any pleading in a legal action filed with a court or administrative 

agency, related to this Grant or which may affect Grantee’s ability to perform its obligations hereunder, 

Grantee shall notify the State of such action and deliver copies of such pleadings to the State’s principal 

representative as identified herein. If the State’s principal representative is not then serving, such notice and 

copies shall be delivered to the Executive Director of DOLA. 

C. Performance Outside the State of Colorado and/or the United States 

[Not applicable if Grant Funds include any federal funds] Following the Effective Date, Grantee shall 

provide written notice to the State, in accordance with §16 (Notices and Representatives), within 20 days 

of the earlier to occur of Grantee’s decision to perform, or its execution of an agreement with a Subgrantee 

to perform, Services outside the State of Colorado and/or the United States. Such notice shall specify the 

type of Services to be performed outside the State of Colorado and/or the United States and the reason why 

it is necessary or advantageous to perform such Services at such location or locations. All notices received 

by the State pursuant to this §8.C shall be posted on the Colorado Department of Personnel & 

Administration’s website. Knowing failure by Grantee to provide notice to the State under this §8.C shall 

constitute a material breach of this Grant. 

D. Noncompliance 

Grantee’s failure to provide reports and notify the State in a timely manner in accordance with this §8 may 

result in the delay of payment of funds and/or termination as provided under this Grant. 

E. Subgrants/Subcontracts 

Copies of any and all subgrants and subcontracts entered into by Grantee to perform its obligations 

hereunder shall be submitted to the State or its principal representative upon request by the State. Any and 

all subgrants and subcontracts entered into by Grantee related to its performance hereunder shall comply 

with all applicable federal and state laws and shall provide that such subgrants be governed by the laws of 

the State of Colorado. 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 7 of 21 

9. GRANTEE RECORDS 

Grantee shall make, keep, maintain and allow inspection and monitoring of the following records: 

A. Maintenance 

Grantee shall make, keep, maintain, and allow inspection and monitoring by the State of a complete file of 

all records, documents, communications, notes and other written materials, electronic media files, and 

communications, pertaining in any manner to the Work or the delivery of Services (including, but not 

limited to the operation of programs) or Goods hereunder. Grantee shall maintain such records (the 

“Record Retention Period”) until the last to occur of the following:  

(i) a period of five years after the date this Grant is completed or terminated, or final payment is made 

hereunder, whichever is later, or  

(ii) for such further period as may be necessary to resolve any pending matters, or  

(iii) if an audit is occurring, or Grantee has received notice that an audit is pending, then until such audit 

has been completed and its findings have been resolved. 

B. Inspection 

Grantee shall permit the State, the federal government (if Grant Funds include federal funds) and any other 

duly authorized agent of a governmental agency to audit, inspect, examine, excerpt, copy and/or transcribe 

Grantee's records related to this Grant during the Record Retention Period for a period of five years 

following termination of this Grant or final payment hereunder, whichever is later, to assure compliance 

with the terms hereof or to evaluate Grantee's performance hereunder. The State reserves the right to 

inspect the Work at all reasonable times and places during the term of this Grant, including any extension. 

If the Work fails to conform to the requirements of this Grant, the State may require Grantee promptly to 

bring the Work into conformity with Grant requirements, at Grantee’s sole expense. If the Work cannot be 

brought into conformance by re-performance or other corrective measures, the State may require Grantee to 

take necessary action to ensure that future performance conforms to Grant requirements and exercise the 

remedies available under this Grant, at law or in equity in lieu of or in conjunction with such corrective 

measures.  

C. Monitoring 

Grantee shall permit the State, the federal government (if Grant Funds include federal funds), and other 

governmental agencies having jurisdiction, in their sole discretion, to monitor all activities conducted by 

Grantee pursuant to the terms of this Grant using any reasonable procedure, including, but not limited to: 

internal evaluation procedures, examination of program data, special analyses, on-site checking, formal 

audit examinations, or any other procedures. All monitoring controlled by the State shall be performed in a 

manner that shall not unduly interfere with Grantee’s performance hereunder. 

D. Final Audit Report 

Grantee shall provide a copy of its audit report(s) to DOLA as specified in Exhibit B.  

10. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION-STATE RECORDS 

Grantee shall comply with the provisions of this §10 if it becomes privy to confidential information in 

connection with its performance hereunder. Confidential information, includes, but is not necessarily limited to, 

state records, personnel records, and information concerning individuals.  

A. Confidentiality 

Grantee shall keep all State records and information confidential at all times and comply with all laws and 

regulations concerning confidentiality of information. Any request or demand by a third party for State 

records and information in the possession of Grantee shall be immediately forwarded to the State’s 

principal representative. 

B. Notification 

Grantee shall notify its agent, employees, Subgrantees, and assigns who may come into contact with State 

records and confidential information that each is subject to the confidentiality requirements set forth herein, 

and shall provide each with a written explanation of such requirements before they are permitted to access 

such records and information. 

  

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 8 of 21 

C. Use, Security, and Retention 

Confidential information of any kind shall not be distributed or sold to any third party or used by Grantee 

or its agents in any way, except as authorized by this Grant or approved in writing by the State. Grantee 

shall provide and maintain a secure environment that ensures confidentiality of all State records and other 

confidential information wherever located. Confidential information shall not be retained in any files or 

otherwise by Grantee or its agents, except as permitted in this Grant or approved in writing by the State. 

D. Disclosure-Liability 

Disclosure of State records or other confidential information by Grantee for any reason may be cause for 

legal action by third parties against Grantee, the State or their respective agents. Grantee shall, to the extent 

permitted by law, indemnify, save, and hold harmless the State, its employees and agents, against any and 

all claims, damages, liability and court awards including costs, expenses, and attorney fees and related 

costs, incurred as a result of any act or omission by Grantee, or its employees, agents, Subgrantees, or 

assignees pursuant to this §10. 

11. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

Grantee shall not engage in any business or personal activities or practices or maintain any relationships which 

conflict in any way with the full performance of Grantee’s obligations hereunder. Grantee acknowledges that 

with respect to this Grant, even the appearance of a conflict of interest is harmful to the State’s interests. Absent 

the State’s prior written approval, Grantee shall refrain from any practices, activities or relationships that 

reasonably appear to be in conflict with the full performance of Grantee’s obligations to the State hereunder. If a 

conflict or appearance exists, or if Grantee is uncertain whether a conflict or the appearance of a conflict of 

interest exists, Grantee shall submit to the State a disclosure statement setting forth the relevant details for the 

State’s consideration. Failure to promptly submit a disclosure statement or to follow the State’s direction in 

regard to the apparent conflict constitutes a breach of this Grant.  

12. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

Grantee makes the following specific representations and warranties, each of which was relied on by the State in 

entering into this Grant. 

A. Standard and Manner of Performance 

Grantee shall perform its obligations hereunder in accordance with the highest standards of care, skill and 

diligence in the industry, trades or profession and in the sequence and manner set forth in this Grant.  

B. Legal Authority – Grantee and Grantee’s Signatory 

Grantee warrants that it possesses the legal authority to enter into this Grant and that it has taken all actions 

required by its procedures, by-laws, and/or applicable laws to exercise that authority, and to lawfully 

authorize its undersigned signatory to execute this Grant, or any part thereof, and to bind Grantee to its 

terms. If requested by the State, Grantee shall provide the State with proof of Grantee’s authority to enter 

into this Grant within 15 days of receiving such request. 

C. Licenses, Permits, Etc. 

Grantee represents and warrants that as of the Effective Date it has, and that at all times during the term 

hereof it shall have, at its sole expense, all licenses, certifications, approvals, insurance, permits, and other 

authorization required by law to perform its obligations hereunder. Grantee warrants that it shall maintain 

all necessary licenses, certifications, approvals, insurance, permits, and other authorizations required to 

properly perform this Grant, without reimbursement by the State or other adjustment in Grant Funds. 

Additionally, all employees and agents of Grantee performing Services under this Grant shall hold all 

required licenses or certifications, if any, to perform their responsibilities. Grantee, if a foreign corporation 

or other foreign entity transacting business in the State of Colorado, further warrants that it currently has 

obtained and shall maintain any applicable certificate of authority to transact business in the State of 

Colorado and has designated a registered agent in Colorado to accept service of process. Any revocation, 

withdrawal or non-renewal of licenses, certifications, approvals, insurance, permits or any such similar 

requirements necessary for Grantee to properly perform the terms of this Grant shall be deemed to be a 

material breach by Grantee and constitute grounds for termination of this Grant. 

  

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 9 of 21 

13. INSURANCE 

Grantee and its Subgrantees shall obtain and maintain insurance as specified in this section at all times during 

the term of this Grant: All policies evidencing the insurance coverage required hereunder shall be issued by 

insurance companies satisfactory to Grantee and the State. 

A. Grantee 

i. Public Entities 

If Grantee is a "public entity" within the meaning of the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, CRS 

§24-10-101, et seq., as amended (the “GIA”), then Grantee shall maintain at all times during the term 

of this Grant such liability insurance, by commercial policy or self-insurance, as is necessary to meet 

its liabilities under the GIA. Grantee shall show proof of such insurance satisfactory to the State, if 

requested by the State. Grantee shall require each subgrant with Subgrantees that are public entities, 

providing Goods or Services hereunder, to include the insurance requirements necessary to meet 

Subgrantee’s liabilities under the GIA. 

ii. Non-Public Entities 

If Grantee is not a "public entity" within the meaning of the GIA, Grantee shall obtain and maintain 

during the term of this Grant insurance coverage and policies meeting the same requirements set forth 

in §13(B) with respect to Subgrantees that are not "public entities". 

B. Grantees, Subgrantees and Subcontractors 

Grantee shall require each subgrant with Subgrantees and each contract with Subcontractors, other than 

those that are public entities, providing Goods or Services in connection with this Grant, to include 

insurance requirements substantially similar to the following: 

i. Workers’ Compensation 

Workers’ Compensation Insurance as required by State statute, and Employer’s Liability Insurance 

covering all of Grantee, Subgrantee and Subcontractor employees acting within the course and scope 

of their employment. 

ii. General Liability 

Commercial General Liability Insurance written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 10/93 or 

equivalent, covering premises operations, fire damage, independent contractors, products and 

completed operations, blanket contractual liability, personal injury, and advertising liability with 

minimum limits as follows: (a) $1,000,000 each occurrence; (b) $1,000,000 general aggregate; (c) 

$1,000,000 products and completed operations aggregate; and (d) $50,000 any one fire. 

iii. Automobile Liability 

Automobile Liability Insurance covering any auto (including owned, hired and non-owned autos) with 

a minimum limit of $1,000,000 each accident combined single limit. 

iv. Malpractice/Professional Liability Insurance 

This section  shall |  shall not apply to this Grant. 

Grantee, Subgrantees and Subcontractors shall maintain in full force and effect a Professional Liability 

Insurance Policy in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $1,000,000 in the 

aggregate, written on an occurrence form, that provides coverage for its work undertaken pursuant to 

this Grant. If a policy written on an occurrence form is not commercially available, the claims-made 

policy shall remain in effect for the duration of this Grant and for at least two years beyond the 

completion and acceptance of the work under this Grant, or, alternatively, a two year extended 

reporting period must be purchased. The Grantee, Subgrantee or Subcontractor shall be responsible for 

all claims, damages, losses or expenses, including attorney's fees, arising out of or resulting from such 

party’s performance of professional services under this Grant, a subcontract or subgrant. 

v. Umbrella Liability Insurance  
For construction projects exceeding $10,000,000, Grantee, Subgrantees and Subcontractors shall 

maintain umbrella/excess liability insurance on an occurrence basis in excess of the underlying 

insurance described in §13B(i)-(iv) above.  Coverage shall follow the terms of the underlying 

insurance, included the additional insured and waiver of subrogation provisions. The amounts of 

insurance required in subsections above may be satisfied by the Grantee, Subgrantee and 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 10 of 21 

Subcontractor purchasing coverage for the limits specified or by any combination of underlying and 

umbrella limits, so long as the total amount of insurance is not less than the limits specified in each 

section previously mentioned.  The insurance shall have a minimum amount of $5,000,000 per 

occurrence and $5,000,000 in the aggregate. 

vi. Property Insurance  

This subsection shall apply if Grant Funds are provided for the acquisition, construction, or 

rehabilitation of real property.  

Insurance on the buildings and other improvements now existing or hereafter erected on the premises 

and on the fixtures and personal property included in the Subject Property against loss by fire, other 

hazards covered by the so called “all risk” form of policy and such other perils as State shall from time 

to time require with respect to properties of the nature and in the geographical area of the Subject 

Property, and to be in an amount at least equal to the replacement cost value of the Subject Property. 

Grantor will at its sole cost and expense, from time to time and at any time, at the request of State 

provide State with evidence satisfactory to State of the replacement cost of the Subject Property. 

vii.Flood Insurance  

If the Subject Property or any part thereof is at any time located in a designated official flood hazard 

area, flood insurance insuring the buildings and improvements now existing or hereafter erected on the 

Subject Property and the personal property used in the operation thereof in an amount equal to the 

lesser of the amount required for property insurance identified in §vi above or the maximum limit of 

coverage made available with respect to such buildings and improvements and personal property 

under applicable federal laws and the regulations issued thereunder. 

viii. Builder’s Risk Insurance 

The subsection shall apply if Grant Funds are provided for construction or rehabilitation of real 

property. 

Grantee, Subgrantee and/or Subcontractor shall purchase and maintain property insurance written on a 

builder’s risk “all-risk” or equivalent policy form in the amount of the initial 

construction/rehabilitation costs, plus value of subsequent modifications and cost of materials supplied 

or installed by others, comprising total value for the entire Project at the site on a replacement cost 

basis without optional deductibles.  Such property insurance shall be maintained, unless otherwise 

agreed in writing by all persons and entities who are beneficiaries of such insurance, until final 

payment has been made or until no person or entity other than the property owner has an insurable 

interest in the property. 

a) The insurance shall include interests of the property owner, Grantee, Subgrantee, 

Subcontractors in the Project as named insureds. 

b) All associated deductibles shall be the responsibility of the Grantee, Subcontractor and 

Subgrantee.  Such policy may have a deductible clause but not to exceed $10,000. 

c) Property insurance shall be on an “all risk” or equivalent policy form and shall include, without 

limitation, insurance against the perils of fire (with extended coverage) and physical loss or 

damage including, without duplication of coverage, theft, vandalism, malicious mischief, 

collapse, earthquake, flood, windstorm, falsework, testing and startup, temporary buildings and 

debris removal including demolition occasioned by enforcement of any applicable legal 

requirements, and shall cover reasonable compensation for Grantee’s, Subgrantee’s and 

Subcontractor’s services and expenses required as a result of such insured loss. 

d) Builders Risk coverage shall include partial use by Grantee and/or property owner. 

e) The amount of such insurance shall be increased to include the cost of any additional work to 

be done on the Project, or materials or equipment to be incorporated in the Project, under other 

independent contracts let or to be let.  In such event, Subgrantee and Subcontractor shall be 

reimbursed for this cost as his or her share of the insurance in the same ratio as the ratio of the 

insurance represented by such independent contracts let or to be let to the total insurance 

carried. 

  

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 11 of 21 

ix. Pollution Liability Insurance 

If Grantee and/or its Subgrantee or Subcontractor is providing directly or indirectly work with 

pollution/environmental hazards, they must provide or cause those conducting the work to provide 

Pollution Liability Insurance coverage. Pollution Liability policy must include contractual liability 

coverage. The policy limits shall be in the amount of $1,000,000 with maximum deductible of $25,000 

to be paid by the Grantee’s Subcontractor and/or Subgrantee. 

C. Miscellaneous Insurance Provisions 

Certificates of Insurance and/or insurance policies required under this Grant shall be subject to the 

following stipulations and additional requirements: 

i. Deductible. Any and all deductibles or self-insured retentions contained in any Insurance policy shall 

be assumed by and at the sole risk of the Grantee, its Subgrantees or Subcontractors. 

ii. In Force. If any of the said policies shall fail at any time to meet the requirements of the Grant as to 

form or substance, or if a company issuing any such policy shall be or at any time cease to be 

approved by the Division of Insurance of the State of Colorado, or be or cease to be in compliance 

with any stricter requirements of the Grant, the Grantee, its Subgrantee and its Subcontractor shall 

promptly obtain a new policy. 

iii. Insurer. All requisite insurance shall be obtained from financially responsible insurance companies, 

authorized to do business in the State of Colorado and acceptable to Grantee. 

iv. Additional Insured 

Grantee and the State shall be named as additional insureds on the Commercial General Liability and 

Automobile Liability Insurance policies (leases and construction Grants require additional insured 

coverage for completed operations on endorsements CG 2010 11/85, CG 2037, or equivalent). 

v. Primacy of Coverage 

Coverage required of Grantee, Subgrantees and Subcontractors shall be primary over any insurance or 

self-insurance program carried by Grantee or the State. 

vi. Cancellation 

The above insurance policies shall include provisions preventing cancellation or non-renewal without 

at least 45 days prior notice to the Grantee and Grantee shall forward such notice to the State in 

accordance with §16 (Notices and Representatives) within seven days of Grantee’s receipt of such 

notice. 

vii.Subrogation Waiver 

All insurance policies in any way related to this Grant and secured and maintained by Grantee or its 

Subgrantees and Subcontractors as required herein shall include clauses stating that each carrier shall 

waive all rights of recovery, under subrogation or otherwise, against Grantee or the State, its agencies, 

institutions, organizations, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers. 

D. Certificates 

Grantee, Subgrantee and Subcontractor shall provide certificates showing insurance coverage required 

hereunder to the State within seven business days of the Effective Date of this Grant or of their respective 

subcontract or subgrant. No later than 15 days prior to the expiration date of any such coverage, Grantee, 

Subgrantee and Subcontractor shall deliver to the State or Grantee certificates of insurance evidencing 

renewals thereof. In addition, upon request by the State at any other time during the term of this Grant, 

subgrant or subcontract, Grantee, Subgrantee and Subcontractor shall, within 10 days of such request, 

supply to the State evidence satisfactory to the State of compliance with the provisions of this §13. 

14. BREACH 

A. Defined 

In addition to any breaches specified in other sections of this Grant, the failure of either Party to perform 

any of its material obligations hereunder in whole or in part or in a timely or satisfactory manner, 

constitutes a breach. The institution of proceedings under any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or 

similar law, by or against Grantee, or the appointment of a receiver or similar officer for Grantee or any of 

its property, which is not vacated or fully stayed within 20 days after the institution or occurrence thereof, 

shall also constitute a breach. 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 12 of 21 

B. Notice and Cure Period 

In the event of a breach, notice of such shall be given in writing by the aggrieved Party to the other Party in 

the manner provided in §16. If such breach is not cured within 30 days of receipt of written notice, or if a 

cure cannot be completed within 30 days, or if cure of the breach has not begun within 30 days and pursued 

with due diligence, the State may exercise any of the remedies set forth in §15. Notwithstanding anything 

to the contrary herein, the State, in its sole discretion, need not provide advance notice or a cure period and 

may immediately terminate this Grant in whole or in part if reasonably necessary to preserve public safety 

or to prevent immediate public crisis. 

15. REMEDIES 

If Grantee is in breach under any provision of this Grant or if the State terminates this Grant pursuant to §15(B), 

the State shall have the remedies listed in this §15 in addition to all other remedies set forth in other sections of 

this Grant following the notice and cure period set forth in §14(B), if applicable. The State may exercise any or 

all of the remedies available to it, in its sole discretion, concurrently or consecutively.  

A. Termination for Cause and/or Breach 

If Grantee fails to perform any of its obligations hereunder with such diligence as is required to ensure its 

completion in accordance with the provisions of this Grant and in a timely manner, the State may notify 

Grantee of such non-performance in accordance with the provisions herein. If Grantee thereafter fails to 

promptly cure such non-performance within the cure period, the State, at its option, may terminate this 

entire Grant or such part of this Grant as to which there has been delay or a failure to properly perform. 

Exercise by the State of this right shall not be deemed a breach of its obligations hereunder. Grantee shall 

continue performance of this Grant to the extent not terminated, if any. 

i. Obligations and Rights 

To the extent specified in any termination notice, Grantee shall not incur further obligations or render 

further performance hereunder past the effective date of such notice, and shall terminate outstanding 

orders and subgrants/subcontracts with third parties. However, Grantee shall complete and deliver to 

the State all Work, Services and Goods not cancelled by the termination notice and may incur 

obligations as are necessary to do so within this Grant’s terms. At the sole discretion of the State, 

Grantee shall assign to the State all of Grantee's right, title, and interest under such terminated orders 

or subgrants/subcontracts. Upon termination, Grantee shall take timely, reasonable and necessary 

action to protect and preserve property in the possession of Grantee in which the State has an interest. 

All materials owned by the State in the possession of Grantee shall be immediately returned to the 

State.  

ii. Payments 

The State shall reimburse Grantee only for accepted performance up to the date of termination. If, after 

termination by the State, it is determined that Grantee was not in breach or that Grantee's action or 

inaction was excusable, such termination shall be treated as a termination in the public interest and the 

rights and obligations of the Parties shall be the same as if this Grant had been terminated in the public 

interest, as described herein. 

iii. Damages and Withholding 

Notwithstanding any other remedial action by the State, Grantee also shall remain liable to the State 

for any damages sustained by the State by virtue of any breach under this Grant by Grantee and the 

State may withhold any payment to Grantee for the purpose of mitigating the State’s damages, until 

such time as the exact amount of damages due to the State from Grantee is determined. The State may 

withhold any amount that may be due to Grantee as the State deems necessary to protect the State, 

including loss as a result of outstanding liens or claims of former lien holders, or to reimburse the 

State for the excess costs incurred in procuring similar goods or services.  

B. Early Termination in the Public Interest 

The State is entering into this Grant for the purpose of carrying out the public policy of the State of 

Colorado, as determined by its Governor, General Assembly, and/or Courts. If this Grant ceases to further 

the public policy of the State, the State, in its sole discretion, may terminate this Grant in whole or in part. 

Exercise by the State of this right shall not constitute a breach of the State’s obligations hereunder. This 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 13 of 21 

subsection shall not apply to a termination of this Grant by the State for cause or breach by Grantee, which 

shall be governed by §15(A) or as otherwise specifically provided for herein. 

i. Method and Content 

The State shall notify Grantee of such termination in accordance with §16. The notice shall specify the 

effective date of the termination and whether it affects all or a portion of this Grant.  

ii. Obligations and Rights 

Upon receipt of a termination notice, Grantee shall be subject to and comply with the same obligations 

and rights set forth in §15(A)(i). 

iii. Payments 

If this Grant is terminated by the State pursuant to this §15(B), Grantee shall be paid an amount which 

bears the same ratio to the total reimbursement under this Grant as the Services satisfactorily 

performed bear to the total Services covered by this Grant, less payments previously made. 

Additionally, if this Grant is less than 60% completed, the State may reimburse Grantee for a portion 

of actual out-of-pocket expenses (not otherwise reimbursed under this Grant) incurred by Grantee 

which are directly attributable to the uncompleted portion of Grantee’s obligations hereunder; 

provided that the sum of any and all reimbursement shall not exceed the maximum amount payable to 

Grantee hereunder. 

C. Termination for No Substantial Progress in the Work  

The State may elect to terminate this Grant upon receipt and review of any Quarterly Progress Report, 

submitted per the time periods defined in Exhibit E – Project Performance Plan, if such Quarterly Progress 

Report fails to evidence Substantial Progress in the Work as directed, defined and expected under Exhibit 

B.  Further, the State may elect to terminate this Grant if the Grantee fails to complete Project Closeout 

within three months of completion of the Work.  Exercise by the State of this right shall not be deemed a 

breach of its obligations hereunder. 

i. Obligations and Rights 

To the extent specified in any termination notice, Grantee shall not incur further obligations or render 

further performance hereunder past the effective date of such notice, and shall terminate outstanding 

orders and subgrants/subcontracts with third parties. However, Grantee shall complete and deliver to 

the State all Work, Services and Goods not cancelled by the termination notice and may incur 

obligations as are necessary to do so within this Grant’s terms. At the sole discretion of the State, 

Grantee shall assign to the State all of Grantee's right, title, and interest under such terminated orders 

or subgrants/subcontracts. Upon termination, Grantee shall take timely, reasonable and necessary 

action to protect and preserve property in the possession of Grantee in which the State has an interest. 

All materials owned by the State in the possession of Grantee shall be immediately returned to the 

State.  

ii. Payments 

The State shall reimburse Grantee only for accepted performance up to the date of termination.  

iii. Damages and Withholding 

Notwithstanding any other remedial action by the State, Grantee also shall remain liable to the State 

for any damages sustained by the State by virtue of any breach under this Grant by Grantee and the 

State may withhold any payment to Grantee for the purpose of mitigating the State’s damages, until 

such time as the exact amount of damages due to the State from Grantee is determined. The State may 

withhold any amount that may be due to Grantee as the State deems necessary to protect the State, 

including loss as a result of outstanding liens or claims of former lien holders, or to reimburse the 

State for the excess costs incurred in procuring similar goods or services.  

D. Remedies Not Involving Termination 

The State, at its sole discretion, may exercise one or more of the following remedies in addition to other 

remedies available to it: 

i. Suspend Performance 

Suspend Grantee’s performance with respect to all or any portion of this Grant pending necessary 

corrective action as specified by the State without entitling Grantee to an adjustment in price/cost or 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 14 of 21 

performance schedule. Grantee shall promptly cease performance and incurring costs in accordance 

with the State’s directive and the State shall not be liable for costs incurred by Grantee after the 

suspension of performance under this provision. 

ii. Withhold Payment 

Withhold payment to Grantee until corrections in Grantee’s performance are satisfactorily made and 

completed. 

iii. Deny Payment 

Deny payment for those obligations not performed, that due to Grantee’s actions or inactions, cannot 

be performed or, if performed, would be of no value to the State; provided, that any denial of payment 

shall be reasonably related to the value to the State of the obligations not performed. 

iv. Removal 

Demand removal of any of Grantee’s employees, agents, or Subgrantees whom the State deems 

incompetent, careless, insubordinate, unsuitable, or otherwise unacceptable, or whose continued 

relation to this Grant is deemed to be contrary to the public interest or not in the State’s best interest. 

v. Intellectual Property  

If Grantee infringes on a patent, copyright, trademark, trade secret or other intellectual property right 

while performing its obligations under this Grant, Grantee shall, at the State’s option (a) obtain for the 

State or Grantee the right to use such products and services; (b) replace any Goods, Services, or other 

product involved with non-infringing products or modify them so that they become non-infringing; or, 

(c) if neither of the foregoing alternatives are reasonably available, remove any infringing Goods, 

Services, or products and refund the price paid therefore to the State. 

16. NOTICES and REPRESENTATIVES 

Each individual identified below is the principal representative of the designating Party. All notices required to 

be given hereunder shall be hand delivered with receipt required or sent by certified or registered mail to such 

Party’s principal representative at the address set forth below. In addition to, but not in lieu of a hard-copy 

notice, notice also may be sent by e-mail to the e-mail addresses, if any, set forth below. Either Party may from 

time to time designate by written notice substitute addresses or persons to whom such notices shall be sent. 

Unless otherwise provided herein, all notices shall be effective upon receipt. 

A. State: 

Chantal Unfug, Division Director 

Division of Local Government 

Colorado Department of Local Affairs 

1313 Sherman Street, Room 521 

Denver, Colorado  80203 

Email:  chantal.unfug@state.co.us 

 

B. Grantee: 

John Morris, Mayor  

City of Evans 

1100 37
th
 Street 

Evans, Colorado  80620 

Email:  n/a 

17. RIGHTS IN DATA, DOCUMENTS, AND COMPUTER SOFTWARE 

This section  shall |  shall not apply to this Grant. 

Any software, research, reports, studies, data, photographs, negatives or other documents, drawings, models, 

materials, or Work Product of any type, including drafts, prepared by Grantee in the performance of its 

obligations under this Grant shall be the exclusive property of the State and, all Work Product shall be delivered 

to the State by Grantee upon completion or termination hereof. The State’s exclusive rights in such Work 

Product shall include, but not be limited to, the right to copy, publish, display, transfer, and prepare derivative 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 15 of 21 

works. Grantee shall not use, willingly allow, cause or permit such Work Product to be used for any purpose 

other than the performance of Grantee's obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the State. 

18. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY 

Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary, nothing herein shall constitute a waiver, express or implied, 

of any of the immunities, rights, benefits, protection, or other provisions of the GIA. Liability for claims for 

injuries to persons or property arising from the negligence of the State of Colorado, its departments, institutions, 

agencies, boards, officials, and employees is controlled and limited by the provisions of the GIA and the risk 

management statutes, CRS §24-30-1501, et seq., as amended. 

19. STATEWIDE CONTRACT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

If the maximum amount payable to Grantee under this Grant is greater than $100,000 either on the Effective 

Date or at anytime thereafter, this §19 applies.  

Grantee agrees to be governed, and to abide, by the provisions of CRS §24-102-205, §24-102-206, §24-103-601, 

§24-103.5-101 and §24-105-102 concerning the monitoring of vendor performance on state Grants and inclusion 

of Grant performance information in a statewide Contract Management System. 

Grantee’s performance shall be subject to Evaluation and Review in accordance with the terms and conditions of 

this Grant, State law, including CRS §24-103.5-101, and State Fiscal Rules, Policies and Guidance. Evaluation 

and Review of Grantee’s performance shall be part of the normal Grant administration process and Grantee’s 

performance will be systematically recorded in the statewide Contract Management System. Areas of Evaluation 

and Review shall include, but shall not be limited to quality, cost and timeliness. Collection of information 

relevant to the performance of Grantee’s obligations under this Grant shall be determined by the specific 

requirements of such obligations and shall include factors tailored to match the requirements of Grantee’s 

obligations. Such performance information shall be entered into the statewide Contract Management System at 

intervals established herein and a final Evaluation, Review and Rating shall be rendered within 30 days of the 

end of the Grant term. Grantee shall be notified following each performance Evaluation and Review, and shall 

address or correct any identified problem in a timely manner and maintain work progress. 

Should the final performance Evaluation and Review determine that Grantee demonstrated a gross failure to 

meet the performance measures established hereunder, the Executive Director of the Colorado Department of 

Personnel and Administration (Executive Director), upon request by the Department of Local Affairs, and 

showing of good cause, may debar Grantee and prohibit Grantee from receiving future grants and bidding on 

future contracts. Grantee may contest the final Evaluation, Review and Rating by: (a) filing rebuttal statements, 

which may result in either removal or correction of the evaluation (CRS §24-105-102(6)), or (b) under CRS 

§24-105-102(6), exercising the debarment protest and appeal rights provided in CRS §§24-109-106, 107, 201 or 

202, which may result in the reversal of the debarment and reinstatement of Grantee, by the Executive Director, 

upon a showing of good cause. 

20. RESTRICTION ON PUBLIC BENEFITS 

This section  shall |  shall not apply to this Grant.  

Grantee must confirm that any individual natural person is lawfully present in the United States pursuant to CRS 

§24-76.5-101 et seq. when such individual applies for public benefits provided under this Grant by requiring the 

applicant to: 

A. Produce an identification document in accordance with §2.1.1 through §2.1.3 of Colorado Department of 

Revenue’s Rule #1 CCR 201-17, Rule for Evidence of Lawful Presence, as amended.  

B. Execute an affidavit herein attached as Form 1, Residency Declaration, stating 

i. That he or she is a United States citizen or legal permanent resident; or 

ii. That he or she is otherwise lawfully present in the United States pursuant to federal law. 

[The following applies if Grant is funded with federal funds]. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent that there is any conflict with the provisions above or those set 

forth in the Residency Declaration attached hereto as Form 1 and any provision of federal law, the provisions of 

federal law shall prevail. 

  

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 16 of 21 

21. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

A. Assignment and Subgrants 

Grantee’s rights and obligations hereunder are personal and may not be transferred, assigned or subgranted 

without the prior, written consent of the State. Any attempt at assignment, transfer, or subgranting without 

such consent shall be void. All assignments, subgrants, or subcontracts approved by Grantee or the State 

are subject to all of the provisions hereof. Grantee shall be solely responsible for all aspects of subgranting 

and subcontracting arrangements and performance.  

B. Binding Effect 

Except as otherwise provided in §21(A), all provisions herein contained, including the benefits and 

burdens, shall extend to and be binding upon the Parties’ respective heirs, legal representatives, successors, 

and assigns. 

C. Captions 

The captions and headings in this Grant are for convenience of reference only, and shall not be used to 

interpret, define, or limit its provisions. 

D. Counterparts 

This Grant may be executed in multiple identical original counterparts, all of which shall constitute one 

agreement. 

E. Entire Understanding 

This Grant represents the complete integration of all understandings between the Parties and all prior 

representations and understandings, oral or written, are merged herein. Prior or contemporaneous additions, 

deletions, or other changes hereto shall not have any force or effect whatsoever, unless embodied herein. 

F. Indemnification-General 

Grantee shall, to the extent permitted by law, indemnify, save, and hold harmless the State, its employees 

and agents, against any and all claims, damages, liability and court awards including costs, expenses, and 

attorney fees and related costs, incurred as a result of any act or omission by Grantee, or its employees, 

agents, Subgrantees, or assignees pursuant to the terms of this Grant; however, the provisions hereof shall 

not be construed or interpreted as a waiver, express or implied, of any of the immunities, rights, benefits, 

protection, or other provisions, of the GIA, or the Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. 2671 et seq., as 

applicable, as now or hereafter amended. 

G. Jurisdiction and Venue 

All suits, actions, or proceedings related to this Grant shall be held in the State of Colorado and exclusive 

venue shall be in the City and County of Denver. 

H. List of Selected Applicable Laws 

At all times during the performance of this Grant, Grantee shall comply with all applicable Federal and 

State laws and their implementing regulations, currently in existence and as hereafter amended, including 

without limitation those set forth on Exhibit A, Applicable Laws. Grantee also shall require compliance 

with such laws and regulations by subgrantees under subgrants permitted by this Grant. 

I. Use Covenants 

This section  shall |  shall not apply to this Grant: 

For Subject Property that is owned by Grantee upon execution of this Grant, Grantee shall record a Use 

Covenant substantially equivalent to Exhibit F with the county in which the property resides as soon as 

reasonably practicable after execution of this Grant. For Subject Property acquired by Grantee using Grant 

Funds, Grantee shall record a Use Covenant substantially equivalent to Exhibit F with the county in which 

the property resides as soon as reasonably practicable after acquisition of such property. 

J. Modification 

i. By the Parties 

Except as specifically provided in this Grant, modifications of this Grant shall not be effective unless 

agreed to in writing by the Parties in an amendment hereto, properly executed and approved in 

accordance with applicable Colorado State law, State Fiscal Rules, and Office of the State Controller 

Policies, including, but not limited to, the policy entitled MODIFICATION OF CONTRACTS - 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 17 of 21 

TOOLS AND FORMS. Changes to the Grant shall be authorized to be approved by the following 

State or DOLA parties:  

a) Approval by Division Director 

The Division Director of DOLA or his delegee shall have authority to approve changes to the 

Responsible Administrator and Key Personnel specified in §5 of Exhibit B and the Principal 

Representative in §16. 

b) Approval by DOLA Controller 

The DOLA Controller shall have authority to approve all changes to the Grant which are not 

reserved to the Division Director above. 

ii. By Operation of Law 

This Grant is subject to such modifications as may be required by changes in Federal or Colorado 

State law, or their implementing regulations. Any such required modification automatically shall be 

incorporated into and be part of this Grant on the effective date of such change, as if fully set forth 

herein. 

K. Order of Precedence 

The provisions of this Grant shall govern the relationship of the Parties. In the event of conflicts or 

inconsistencies between this Grant and its exhibits and attachments including, but not limited to, those 

provided by Grantee, such conflicts or inconsistencies shall be resolved by reference to the documents in 

the following order of priority: 

i. Exhibit A (Applicable Laws) 

ii. Colorado Special Provisions 

iii. The provisions of the main body of this Grant (excluding the cover page)  

iv. Any executed Option Letters 

v. Exhibit B (Scope of Project) 

vi. Exhibit E (Project Performance Plan)  

vii.The cover page of this Grant 

L. Severability 

Provided this Grant can be executed and performance of the obligations of the Parties accomplished within 

its intent, the provisions hereof are severable and any provision that is declared invalid or becomes 

inoperable for any reason shall not affect the validity of any other provision hereof. 

M. Survival of Certain Grant Terms 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, provisions of this Grant requiring continued performance, 

compliance, or effect after termination hereof, shall survive such termination and shall be enforceable by 

the State if Grantee fails to perform or comply as required. 

N. Taxes 

The State is exempt from all federal excise taxes under IRC Chapter 32 (No. 84-730123K) and from all 

State and local government sales and use taxes under CRS §§39-26-101 and 201 et seq. Such exemptions 

apply when materials are purchased or services rendered to benefit the State; provided however, that certain 

political subdivisions (e.g., City of Denver) may require payment of sales or use taxes even though the 

product or service is provided to the State. Grantee shall be solely liable for paying such taxes as the State 

is prohibited from paying for or reimbursing Grantee for them. 

O. Third Party Beneficiaries 

Enforcement of this Grant and all rights and obligations hereunder are reserved solely to the Parties, and 

not to any third party. Any services or benefits which third parties receive as a result of this Grant are 

incidental to the Grant, and do not create any rights for such third parties. 

P. Waiver 

Waiver of any breach of a term, provision, or requirement of this Grant, or any right or remedy hereunder, 

whether explicitly or by lack of enforcement, shall not be construed or deemed as a waiver of any 

subsequent breach of such term, provision or requirement, or of any other term, provision, or requirement. 

  

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 18 of 21 

Q. CORA Disclosure 

To the extent not prohibited by federal law, this Grant and the performance measures and standards under 

CRS §24-103.5-101, if any, are subject to public release through the Colorado Open Records Act, CRS 

§24-72-101, et seq. 

 

 

 

THE REST OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 

  

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 19 of 21 

22. COLORADO SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

A. The Special Provisions apply to all Grants except where noted in italics. 

i. CONTROLLER'S APPROVAL. CRS §24-30-202 (1). 

This Grant shall not be deemed valid until it has been approved by the Colorado State Controller or 

designee. 

ii. FUND AVAILABILITY. CRS §24-30-202(5.5). 

Financial obligations of the State payable after the current fiscal year are contingent upon funds for 

that purpose being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made available. 

iii. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY. 

No term or condition of this Grant shall be construed or interpreted as a waiver, express or implied, of 

any of the immunities, rights, benefits, protections, or other provisions, of the Colorado Governmental 

Immunity Act, CRS §24-10-101 et seq., or the Federal Tort Claims Act, 28 U.S.C. §§1346(b) and 

2671 et seq., as applicable now or hereafter amended. 

iv. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR  

Grantee shall perform its duties hereunder as an independent Grantee and not as an employee. Neither 

Grantee nor any agent or employee of Grantee shall be deemed to be an agent or employee of the 

State. Grantee and its employees and agents are not entitled to unemployment insurance or workers 

compensation benefits through the State and the State shall not pay for or otherwise provide such 

coverage for Grantee or any of its agents or employees. Unemployment insurance benefits shall be 

available to Grantee and its employees and agents only if such coverage is made available by Grantee 

or a third party. Grantee shall pay when due all applicable employment taxes and income taxes and 

local head taxes incurred pursuant to this Grant. Grantee shall not have authorization, express or 

implied, to bind the State to any Grant, liability or understanding, except as expressly set forth herein. 

Grantee shall (a) provide and keep in force workers' compensation and unemployment compensation 

insurance in the amounts required by law, (b) provide proof thereof when requested by the State, and 

(c) be solely responsible for its acts and those of its employees and agents. 

v. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW. 

Grantee shall strictly comply with all applicable federal and State laws, rules, and regulations in effect 

or hereafter established, including, without limitation, laws applicable to discrimination and unfair 

employment practices. 

vi. CHOICE OF LAW. 

Colorado law, and rules and regulations issued pursuant thereto, shall be applied in the interpretation, 

execution, and enforcement of this grant. Any provision included or incorporated herein by reference 

which conflicts with said laws, rules, and regulations shall be null and void. Any provision 

incorporated herein by reference which purports to negate this or any other Special Provision in whole 

or in part shall not be valid or enforceable or available in any action at law, whether by way of 

complaint, defense, or otherwise. Any provision rendered null and void by the operation of this 

provision shall not invalidate the remainder of this Grant, to the extent capable of execution. 

vii.BINDING ARBITRATION PROHIBITED. 

The State of Colorado does not agree to binding arbitration by any extra-judicial body or person. Any 

provision to the contrary in this Grant or incorporated herein by reference shall be null and void. 

viii. SOFTWARE PIRACY PROHIBITION. Governor's Executive Order D 002 00. 

State or other public funds payable under this Grant shall not be used for the acquisition, operation, or 

maintenance of computer software in violation of federal copyright laws or applicable licensing 

restrictions. Grantee hereby certifies and warrants that, during the term of this Grant and any 

extensions, Grantee has and shall maintain in place appropriate systems and controls to prevent such 

improper use of public funds. If the State determines that Grantee is in violation of this provision, the 

State may exercise any remedy available at law or in equity or under this Grant, including, without 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 20 of 21 

limitation, immediate termination of this Grant and any remedy consistent with federal copyright laws 

or applicable licensing restrictions. 

ix. EMPLOYEE FINANCIAL INTEREST. CRS §§24-18-201 and 24-50-507. 

The signatories aver that to their knowledge, no employee of the State has any personal or beneficial 

interest whatsoever in the service or property described in this Grant. Grantee has no interest and shall 

not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that would conflict in any manner or degree with the 

performance of Grantee’s services and Grantee shall not employ any person having such known 

interests. 

x. VENDOR OFFSET. CRS §§24-30-202 (1) and 24-30-202.4.  

[Not applicable to intergovernmental agreements] Subject to CRS §24-30-202.4 (3.5), the State 

Controller may withhold payment under the State’s vendor offset intercept system for debts owed to 

State agencies for: (a) unpaid child support debts or child support arrearages; (b) unpaid balances of 

tax, accrued interest, or other charges specified in CRS §39-21-101, et seq.; (c) unpaid loans due to 

the Student Loan Division of the Department of Higher Education; (d) amounts required to be paid to 

the Unemployment Compensation Fund; and (e) other unpaid debts owing to the State as a result of 

final agency determination or judicial action. 

xi. PUBLIC GRANTS FOR SERVICES. CRS §8-17.5-101.  

[Not applicable to agreements relating to the offer, issuance, or sale of securities, investment advisory 

services or fund management services, sponsored projects, intergovernmental Agreements, or 

information technology services or products and services] Grantee certifies, warrants, and agrees that 

it does not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien who shall perform work under this 

Grant and shall confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for 

employment in the United States to perform work under this Grant, through participation in the E-

Verify Program or the State program established pursuant to CRS §8-17.5-102(5)(c), Grantee shall 

not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this Grant or enter into 

a grant with a Subgrantee that fails to certify to Grantee that the Subgrantee shall not knowingly 

employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this Grant. Grantee (a) shall not use E-

Verify Program or State program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants 

while this Grant is being performed, (b) shall notify the Subgrantee and the granting State agency 

within three days if Grantee has actual knowledge that a Subgrantee is employing or contracting with 

an illegal alien for work under this Grant, (c) shall terminate the Subgrant if a Subgrantee does not 

stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien within three days of receiving the notice, and (d) 

shall comply with reasonable requests made in the course of an investigation, undertaken pursuant to 

CRS §8-17.5-102(5), by the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment. If Grantee participates 

in the State program, Grantee shall deliver to the granting State agency, Institution of Higher 

Education or political subdivision, a written, notarized affirmation, affirming that Grantee has 

examined the legal work status of such employee, and shall comply with all of the other requirements 

of the State program. If Grantee fails to comply with any requirement of this provision or CRS §8-

17.5-101 et seq., the granting State agency, institution of higher education or political subdivision 

may terminate this Grant for breach and, if so terminated, Grantee shall be liable for damages. 

xii.PUBLIC GRANTS WITH NATURAL PERSONS. CRS §24-76.5-101. 

Grantee, if a natural person eighteen (18) years of age or older, hereby swears and affirms under 

penalty of perjury that he or she (a) is a citizen or otherwise lawfully present in the United States 

pursuant to federal law, (b) shall comply with the provisions of CRS §24-76.5-101 et seq., and (c) has 

produced one form of identification required by CRS §24-76.5-103 prior to the Effective Date of this 

Grant. 

 
(Special Provisions - effective 1/1/09) 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 21 of 21 

SIGNATURE PAGE 

 

THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE EXECUTED THIS GRANT 
 

* Persons signing for Grantee hereby swear and affirm that they are authorized to act on Grantee’s behalf and 

acknowledge that the State is relying on their representations to that effect.  

 
 

GRANTEE 

CITY OF EVANS 
 
 

By: _____________________________________________    

Name of Authorized Individual (print) 

 

Title: ___________________________________________ 

Official Title of Authorized Individual 

 

 

______________________________________________ 

*Signature 

 

Date: __________________________________ 

 

STATE OF COLORADO 

John W. Hickenlooper, GOVERNOR 

DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL AFFAIRS 

 

 

By:__________________________________________ 

Reeves Brown, Executive Director 

 

 

Date: __________________________________ 

  

PRE-APPROVED FORM CONTRACT REVIEWER 

 

 

By:__________________________________________ 

Bret Hillberry, State Grants Program Manager 

 

Date: __________________________________ 

 

 

 

ALL GRANTS REQUIRE APPROVAL BY THE STATE CONTROLLER 

 
CRS §24-30-202 requires the State Controller to approve all State grants. This Grant is not valid until signed and 

dated below by the State Controller or delegate. Grantee is not authorized to begin performance until such time. If 

Grantee begins performing prior thereto, the State of Colorado is not obligated to pay Grantee for such performance 

or for any goods and/or services provided hereunder. 

 

 
 

STATE CONTROLLER 
Robert Jaros, CPA 

 

 

By:___________________________________________ 

Barbara M. Casey, CPA, Controller Delegate 

 

Date:_____________________ 

 

 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 1 of 1 –Exhibit A (Applicable Laws) 

 

 

EXHIBIT A – APPLICABLE LAWS 
 

 

 

Laws, regulations, and authoritative guidance incorporated into this Grant include, without limitation: 

 

1. Colorado Revised Statutes §29-1-601 et seq., as amended, Colorado Local Governments Audit Law. 

2. 5 USC552a, as amended, Privacy Act of 1974. 

3. 8 USC 1101, Immigration and Nationality Act. 

4. 29 USC Chapter 8, §§201, 206, et seq., as amended, Labor. 

5. 29 USC Chapter 14, §§621-634, et seq., as amended, Age Discrimination in Employment. 

6. 40 USC Subtitle II, et seq., as amended, Public Buildings and Works. 

7. 40 USC 327–330, Section 103 and 107, Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, as amended. 

8. 40 CFR 1500-1508, as amended, Council on Environmental Quality Regulations Implementing NEPA. 

9. 41 CFR Chapter 60, as amended, Executive Order 11246. 

10. 41 USC 701, et seq., Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988. 

11. 42 USC Chapter 21, et seq., as amended, Civil Rights. 

12. CRS §24-34-302, et seq., as amended, Civil Rights Division. 

13. CRS §24-34-501 – 510, et seq., as amended, Colorado Housing Act of 1970. 

14. CRS §24-75-601 et seq., as amended, Legal Investment of Public Funds. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

THE REST OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 
 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

 

Page 1 of 5 
 

EXHIBIT B – SCOPE OF PROJECT (SOP) 

 

1. PURPOSE 
1.1. Energy Impact.  The purpose of the Energy and Mineral Impact Assistance Program is to assist 

political subdivisions that are socially and/or economically impacted by the development, processing, 

or energy conversion of minerals and mineral fuels. 

2. DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT(S) AND WORK. 
2.1. Project Description.  The Project consists of completion of the design of a wastewater treatment plant.  

2.2. Work Description.  The City of Evans (Grantee) will hire a consultant to develop a design of a 

wastewater treatment plant for the City.  The Work is the production of construction documents, site 

application and engineering report for a wastewater treatment plant at the Hill-N-Park site in the City. 

2.2.1. A contract for consultant services shall be awarded by Grantee to a qualified firm through a formal 

Request For Proposals or competitive selection process. 

2.3. Responsibilities. Grantee shall be responsible for the completion of the Work and to provide required 

documentation to DOLA as specified herein.   

2.3.1. Grantee shall notify DOLA at least 30 days in advance of Project Completion.   

2.4. Recapture of Advanced Funds. To maximize the use of Grant Funds, the State shall evaluate 

Grantee's expenditure of the Grant Funds for timeliness and compliance with the terms of this Grant. 

DOLA reserves the right to recapture advanced Grant Funds when Grantee has not or is not complying 

with the terms of this Grant.  

2.5. Eligible Expenses. Eligible expenses shall include:  all costs for the consultant to develop the 

wastewater plant construction documents, site application and engineering report.  

2.6. Cost Savings. Cost Savings derived while completing the Project shall be: 

2.6.1.  split on a pro-rata basis between the State and Grantee 

2.6.2.  returned to the State 

3. DEFINITIONS 

3.1. “Cost Savings” means the Project Budget amount less the amount expended to complete the Work. 

Cost Savings are determined at the time the Work is completed and the final payment request is 

submitted by the Grantee to the State. Cost Savings do not result in payment by the State to Grantee 

above actual expenditures beyond the required ratio, but deobligates unexpended Grant Funds and 

reduces Grantee’s matching funds requirement. State shall provide written notice to Grantee verifying 

any Cost Savings. 

3.2. “Cumulative Budgetary Line Item Changes” means a cumulative or increasing accumulation of 

additional expenses within a specific line item as listed in §6.2 Budget within this Exhibit B. 

3.3. Project Budget Line items. 

3.3.1. “Architectural/Engineering Services” means professional architectural/engineering fees, RFP/bid 

advertisements, survey work, water/sewer testing fees, electrical inspection and testing fees, 

CDPHE permit fees, and attorney’s fees. 

3.4. “Substantial Completion” means the Work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Grant so it 

can be utilized for its intended purpose without undue interference. 

4. DELIVERABLES 

4.1. Outcome. The final outcome of this Grant is completion of construction documents for a new 

wastewater treatment plant for the City of Evans. 

4.2. Service Area. The performance of the Work described within this Grant shall be located in Evans, 

Colorado.  

4.3. Performance Measures. Grantee shall comply with the performance measures detailed in Exhibit E.  

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

4.4. Budget Line Item Adjustments.  Line Item Adjustments shall not increase the Grant Funds or the 

total amount of the Budget.  

4.4.1. Grantee shall have authority to adjust individual budget line amounts without approval of the State 

up to an aggregate of 10% of such line item from which the funds are moved. Such authority shall 

not allow Grantee to transfer to or between administration budget lines.  Grantee’s Responsible 

Administrator shall send written notification of allowed adjustments to the State within 30 days of 

such adjustment.  

4.4.2. All changes to individual budget lines amounts which are in excess of 10% but less than 24.99% 

of such line item from which the funds are moved (each a “Minor Line Item Adjustment”) shall 

require prior written approval of the DOLA Controller. Grantee’s Responsible Administrator shall 

submit a written request for changes pursuant to this Section to the State. Such request shall 

include the amount of such request, the reason for the request and any necessary documentation. If 

the State approves such request, the State shall unilaterally execute an Option Letter accepting 

such request pursuant to §7(c)(i) of the Grant. Grantee is not authorized to perform until Grantee 

receives an executed Option Letter accepting such change. 

4.4.3. All changes to individual budget lines amounts which are in excess of 24.99% of such line item 

from which the funds are moved shall require a prior written amendment executed by the Grantee 

and DOLA pursuant to §21(J) of the Grant. Grantee shall submit a written request for changes 

pursuant to this Section to the State. Such request shall include the amount of such request, the 

reason for the request and any necessary documentation. Grantee is not authorized to perform until 

a bi-lateral amendment is fully executed by the DOLA Controller accepting such change.  

4.4.4. Signature Authority. All Grantee notices and requests submitted to DOLA pursuant to this §4.4 

(each a “Line Item Proposal”), must be signed and dated by a person authorized to bind the 

Grantee to such Line Item Proposal. 

4.5. Overall Budget Adjustments. 

4.5.1. All changes to the overall Budget which are less than 24.99% (each a “Minor Budget 

Adjustment”) shall require prior written approval of the DOLA Controller. Grantee’s Responsible 

Administrator shall submit a written request for changes pursuant to this Section to the State. Such 

request shall include the amount of such request, the reason for the request and any necessary 

documentation. If the State approves such request, the State shall unilaterally execute an Option 

Letter accepting such request pursuant to §7(c)(ii) of the Grant. Grantee is not authorized to 

perform until Grantee receives an executed Option Letter accepting such change. Minor Budget 

Adjustments shall not increase the Grant Funds.  

4.5.1.1. Exception for Setting Final Initial Budget. Within 30 days of bid opening for its selection 

of its prime Subcontractor, Grantee shall submit a written request for changes to the overall 

Budget to revise the initial overall Budget estimate to align it with current market conditions 

(a “True-up Budget Proposal”). Grantee’s Responsible Administrator shall submit a 

written request for changes pursuant to this Section to the State. Such request shall include 

the amount of such request, the reason for the request and any necessary documentation. If 

the State approves such request, the State shall unilaterally execute an Option Letter 

accepting such request pursuant to §7(c)(iii) of the Grant. Grantee is not authorized to 

perform until Grantee receives an executed Option Letter accepting such change. True-up 

Budget Proposals shall not increase the Grant Funds. The overall Budget adjustment 

permitted by this §4.5.1.1 is only permitted once under this Grant. 

4.5.2. All changes to the overall Budget which are in excess of 24.99% shall require a prior written 

amendment executed by the Grantee and DOLA pursuant to §21(J) of the Grant. Grantee shall 

submit a written request for changes pursuant to this Section to the State. Such request shall 

include the amount of such request, the reason for the request and any necessary documentation. 

Grantee is not authorized to perform until a bi-lateral amendment is fully executed by the DOLA 

Controller accepting such change. 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

4.5.3. Signature Authority. All Grantee notices and requests submitted to DOLA pursuant to this §4.5 

(each a “Budget Proposal”), must be signed and dated by a person authorized to bind the Grantee 

to such Budget Proposal. 

4.6. Quarterly Pay Request and Status Reports.  Beginning 30 days after the end of the first quarter 

following execution of this Grant and for each quarter thereafter until termination of this Grant, 

Grantee shall submit Pay Requests and Status Reports using a form provided by the State.  The State 

shall pay the Grantee for actual expenditures made in the performance of this Grant based on the 

submission of statements in the format prescribed by the State.  The Grantee shall submit Pay Requests 

setting forth a detailed description and provide documentation of the amounts and types of 

reimbursable expenses.  For quarters in which there are no expenditures to reimburse, Grantee shall 

indicate zero (0) in the request and specify status of the Work in the Status Report.  The report will 

contain an update of expenditure of funds by line item as per §6.2 of this Exhibit B Scope of Project as 

well as a projection of all Work expected to be accomplished in the following quarter, including an 

estimate of Grant Funds to be expended.  This report is due within 30 days of the end of the quarter or 

more frequently at the discretion of the Grantee.  See Exhibit E for specific submittal dates. 

4.7. DOLA Acknowledgment.  The Grantee agrees to acknowledge the Colorado Department of Local 

Affairs in any and all materials or events designed to promote or educate the public about the Work and 

the Project, including but not limited to:  press releases, newspaper articles, op-ed pieces, press 

conferences, presentations and brochures/pamphlets. 

5. PERSONNEL 

5.1. Replacement. Grantee shall immediately notify the State if any key personnel specified in §5 of this 

Exhibit B cease to serve. Provided there is a good-faith reason for the change, if Grantee wishes to 

replace its key personnel, it shall notify the State and seek its approval, which shall be at the State 's 

sole discretion, as the State executed this Grant in part reliance on Grantee’s representations regarding 

key personnel. Such notice shall specify why the change is necessary, who the proposed replacement is, 

what their qualifications are, and when the change will take effect. Anytime key personnel cease to 

serve, the State, in its sole discretion, may direct Grantee to suspend Work until such time as 

replacements are approved. All notices sent under this subsection shall be sent in accordance with §16 

of the Grant.  

5.2. Responsible Administrator. Grantee’s performance hereunder shall be under the direct supervision of 

Jessica Gonifas, Deputy City Manager (jgonifas@evanscolorado.com), an employee or agent of 

Grantee, who is hereby designated as the responsible administrator of this Project. Such administrator 

shall be updated through the approval process in §5.1. If this person is an agent of the Grantee, such 

person must have signature authority to bind the Grantee and must provide evidence of such authority. 

5.3. Other Key Personnel:  None.  Such key personnel shall be updated through the approval process in 

§5.1. 

6. FUNDING 

The State provided funds shall be limited to the amount specified under the “Grant Funds” column of §6.2, 

Budget, below. 

6.1. Matching Funds. Grantee shall provide the required (see checked item)  Matching Funds, as listed 

in the “Matching Funds” column of §6.2 below during the term of this Project. Funds used as match on 

previous grant(s) cannot be used as Matching Funds for this Grant. 

6.2. Budget 

Budget Line Item(s) Total Cost Grant 

Funds 

Matching 

Funds 

Matching Funds 

Source  

Architectural/Engineering 

Services 

$2,032,280 $1,320,996 $711,284 Grantee 

Total $2,032,280 $1,320,996 $711,284  

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t

mailto:jgonifas@evanscolorado.com


EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

7. PAYMENT 

Payments shall be made in accordance with this section and the provisions set forth in §7 of the Grant. 

7.1. Payment Schedule. If Work is subcontracted or subgranted and such Subcontractors and/or 

Subgrantees are not previously paid, Grantee shall disburse Grant Funds received from the State to 

such Subcontractor or Subgrantee within fifteen days of receipt. Excess funds shall be returned to 

DOLA. 

Payment Amount  

Interim Payment(s) $1,254,947 Paid upon receipt of actual expense documentation and 

written Pay Requests from the Grantee for 

reimbursement of eligible approved expenses. 

Final Payment 66,049 Paid upon Substantial Completion of the Project (as 

determined by the State in its sole discretion), provided 

that the Grantee has submitted, and DOLA has 

accepted, all required reports. 

Total $1,320,996  

7.2. Remittance Address. If mailed, payments shall be remitted to the following address unless changed in 

accordance with §16 of the Grant: 

City of Evans 

1100 37
th
 Street 

Evans, Colorado  80620 

7.3. Interest. Grantee or Subgrantee may keep interest earned from Grant Funds up to $100 per year for 

administrative expenses. 

8. ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

8.1. Reporting. Grantee shall submit the following reports to DOLA using the State-provided forms. 

DOLA may withhold payment(s) if such reports are not submitted timely.  

8.1.1. Quarterly Pay Request and Status Reports. Quarterly Pay Requests shall be submitted to 

DOLA in accordance with §4.6 of this Exhibit B. 

8.1.2. Final Reports. Within 90 days after the completion of the Project, Grantee shall submit the final 

Pay Request and Status Report to DOLA. 

8.2. Monitoring.  DOLA shall monitor this Work on an as-needed basis.  DOLA may choose to audit the 

records for activities performed under this Grant.  Grantee shall maintain a complete file of all records, 

documents, communications, notes and other written materials or electronic media, files or 

communications, which pertain in any manner to the operation of activities undertaken pursuant to an 

executed Grant. Such books and records shall contain documentation of the Grantee’s pertinent activity 

under this Grant in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 

8.2.1. Subgrantee/Subcontractor. Grantee shall monitor its Subgrantees and/or Subcontractors, if any, 

during the term of this Grant.  Results of such monitoring shall be documented by Grantee and 

maintained on file. 

8.3. Bonds. If Project includes construction or facility improvements, Grantee and/or its contractor (or 

subcontractors) performing such work shall secure the bonds here under from companies holding 

certificates of authority as acceptable sureties pursuant to 31 CFR Part 223 and are authorized to do 

business in Colorado. 

8.3.1. Bid Bond. A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to 5 percent of the bid price. The “bid 

guarantee” shall consist of a firm commitment such as a bid bond, certified check, or other 

negotiable instrument accompanying a bid as assurance that the bidder shall, upon acceptance of 

his bid, execute such contractual documents as may be required within the time specified. 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

8.3.2. Performance Bond. A performance bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of the 

contract price. A “performance bond” is one executed in connection with a contract to secure 

fulfillment of all the contractor's obligations under such contract. 

8.3.3. Payment Bond. A payment bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent of the contract 

price. A “payment bond” is one executed in connection with a contract to assure payment as 

required by statute of all persons supplying labor and material in the execution of the work 

provided for in the contract. 

8.3.4. Substitution. The bonding requirements in this §8.3 may be waived in lieu of an irrevocable letter 

of credit if the price is less than $50,000. 

9. CONSTRUCTION/RENOVATION.  The following subsections shall apply to construction and/or 

renovation related projects/activities: 

9.1. Plans & Specifications. Construction plans and specifications shall be drawn up by a qualified 

engineer or architect licensed in the State of Colorado, or pre-engineered in accordance with Colorado 

law, and hired by the Grantee through a competitive selection process. 

9.2. Procurement. A construction contract shall be awarded to a qualified construction firm through a 

formal selection process with the Grantee being obligated to award the construction contract to the 

lowest responsive, responsible bidder meeting the Grantee's specifications.   

9.3. Subcontracts. Copies of any and all contracts entered into by the Grantee in order to accomplish this 

Project shall be submitted to DOLA upon request, and any and all contracts entered into by the Grantee 

or any of its Subcontractors shall comply with all applicable federal and state laws and shall be 

governed by the laws of the State of Colorado. 

9.4. Standards. Grantee, Subgrantees and Subcontractors shall comply with all applicable statutory design 

and construction standards and procedures that may be required, including the standards required by 

Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment, and shall provide the State with 

documentation of such compliance. 

 

 

 

 

 

THE REST OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



Page 1 of 3 

 

EXHIBIT E – PROJECT PERFORMANCE PLAN 
Funding:  EIAF 
 
Project Number:  7597 

Name of Grantee City of Evans 
 
Name of Project   Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT:   The Project consists of completion of the design of a wastewater treatment 
plant.  

 

DLG Staff:   Don Sandoval - Regional Manager (970) 679-4501 DS  Robert Thompson - Regional Assistant (970) 679-4503 RT 
 

MILESTONES – Grantee shall… By: STATE ROLE- DLG shall…  

Put Project out to bid. Within 60 days of the 
Effective Date of this Grant 
Agreement 

Assist Grantee with bid process, if 
requested.  Provide feedback to Grantee 
identifying issues or concerns, if any. 

ACHIEVED:  MM/DD/20YY 

Award and finalize subcontract(s) and/or 
sub-grant(s). 

Within 90 days of the 
Effective Date of this Grant 
Agreement. 

Review selection and award 
documentation, and copy of 
subcontract(s) and/or sub-grant(s) for 
project file.  Provide feedback to Grantee 
identifying issues or concerns, if any. 

ACHIEVED:  MM/DD/20YY 

Provide DOLA with Project Timeline. Within 30 days of the 
Effective Date of the 
subcontract(s). 

Review timeline to ensure timely 
completion of Project.  Provide feedback 
to Grantee identifying issues or concerns, 
if any. 

ACHIEVED:  MM/DD/20YY 

Contractor mobilization. Within 120 days of the 
Effective Date of this Grant 
Agreement. 

Monitor progress reports from the 
Grantee.  Help Grantee identify if/when a 
Grant Agreement amendment is needed.  
Provide feedback to Grantee identifying 
issues or concerns, if any. 

ACHIEVED:  MM/DD/20YY 

Submit the preliminary engineering 
report for approval by CDPHE 

August 31, 2015 Review PER.  Provide feedback to 
Grantee identifying issues or concerns, if 
any. 

ACHIEVED:  MM/DD/20YY 

Project Completion. 
 

July 31, 2016 Review past quarterly reports and review 
final report. 

ACHIEVED:  MM/DD/20YY 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



Page 2 of 3 

 

Submit quarterly progress reports, 
which includes: Project Performance 
Plan accomplishments and a Financial 
Summary Report for:  
 
4th Quarter 2014 
1st Quarter 2015 
2nd Quarter 2015 
3rd Quarter 2015 
4th Quarter 2015 
1st Quarter 2016 
2nd Quarter 2016 
3rd Quarter 2016 
 
Progress shall be evaluated by the 
Grantee and documented and included 
at least upon submittal of Quarterly 
Progress Reports.  
Such evaluation shall consist of at least 
the following monitoring method:  
a) Question and answer sessions with 
the contractor to confirm understanding 
by all parties as to the nature of the 
Work and how far along it should be 
dependent upon the Quarter under 
review. Specifically, such sessions will 
determine if: 
i) An acceptable percentage of the 
construction documents, site application, 
and engineering report have been 
developed as per agreed time-line as 
would be expected under this Grant and 
described in Exhibit B; and 
ii) The information is acceptable in depth 
and detail to provide options to the City 
for making decisions regarding 
construction of a new wastewater 
treatment plant as described in Exhibit B. 

(30 calendar days after each 
quarter): 
 
 
 
January 30, 2015 
April 30, 2015 
July 30, 2015 
October 30, 2015 
January 30, 2016 
April 30, 2016 
July 30, 2016 
October 29, 2016 

Review documents and provide follow up 
technical assistance as necessary. 
 
If needed, respond to a request for 
training within 10 days.   

 
ACHIEVED:  MM/DD/20YY 
 
ACHIEVED:  MM/DD/20YY 
 
ACHIEVED:  MM/DD/20YY 
 
ACHIEVED:  MM/DD/20YY 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



Page 3 of 3 

 

Submit, at a minimum quarterly basis, 
pay requests and supporting 
documentation of expenses. 
 

January 30, 2015 
April 30, 2015 
July 30, 2015 
October 30, 2015 
January 30, 2016 
April 30, 2016 
July 30, 2016 
October 29, 2016 

Review backup documentation and proof 
of payment prior to approving pay 
request.  Reimbursement should not 
exceed pro rata share. 

ACHIEVED:  MM/DD/20YY 

Submit the Project Final Report to DLG 
within 90 days after the Project 
Completion or expiration of Grant 
Agreement. 
 

October 29, 2016 Provide forms to Grantee within 30 days 
of completion of work or end of the Grant 
Agreement.  Process the Final Report 
and deobligate any remaining grant funds 
within 30 days of receiving a complete 
Final report. 

ACHIEVED:  MM/DD/20YY 

 

QUARTERLY QUESTIONS 
List Reimbursement Requests for the three months being reported on:  
 

Month   January Amount        

 

Month   January Amount        

 

Month   January Amount        

Were any months “zero payment” (no costs incurred) during this quarter?  If so, please provide an explanation.        
 

What are the forecasted costs for the next quarter?        
 

Are the budget lines still adequate?  Is a contract amendment needed at this time?  Are there any anticipated concerns or issues?        
 

Do you foresee any potential problems meeting the Grant Agreement completion deadline?        
 

Were previously identified problems (if any) corrected?  Was a budget adjustment needed/done to address the problem(s)?        
 

 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



EIAF 7597 – Evans Consolidated Wastewater Treatment Plant Design 

Page 1 of 1 –Exhibit G (Form of Option Letter) 

EXHIBIT G 

Form of Option Letter 

 
Date:       Original Grant CMS #:  Option Letter #       CMS Routing #       

1) OPTIONS:  
a. Option to issue a new Budget (§6.2 of Exhibit B) for a Minor Line Item Adjustment (as defined in §4.4.2 of 

Exhibit B). 

b. Option to issue a new Budget (§6.2 of Exhibit B) for a Minor Budget Adjustment (as defined in §4.5.1 of Exhibit 

B).  

c. Option to issue a new Budget (§6.2 of Exhibit B) for acceptance of a True-Up Budget Proposal (as defined in 

§4.5.1.1 of Exhibit B). 

 

2) REQUIRED PROVISIONS. All Option Letters shall contain the appropriate provisions set forth below: 

a. For use with Option 1(a):  In accordance with §7(C)(i) of the Original Grant referenced above between the State 

of Colorado, acting by and through the Colorado Department of Local Affairs, and Grantee's Name (“Grantee”), 

the State hereby approves the Minor Line Item Adjustment listed on the attached revised Budget for §6.2 of Exhibit 

B.  Section 6.2 of Exhibit B of the Original Grant is hereby deleted and replaced with the attached §6.2 of Exhibit 

B.  All references to §6.2 of Exhibit B in the Original Grant shall refer to the attached Exhibit.  Minor Line Item 

Adjustments shall not increase the Grant Funds or the total amount of the Budget.  

b. For use with Option 1(b):  In accordance with §7(C)(ii) of the Original Grant referenced above between the State 

of Colorado, acting by and through the Colorado Department of Local Affairs, and Grantee's Name (“Grantee”), 

the State hereby approves the Minor Budget Adjustment listed on the attached revised Budget for §6.2 of Exhibit B.  

Section 6.2 of Exhibit B of the Original Grant is hereby deleted and replaced with the attached §6.2 of Exhibit B.  

All references to §6.2 of Exhibit B in the Original Grant shall refer to the attached Exhibit.  Minor Budget 

Adjustments shall not increase the Grant Funds. 

c. For use with Option 1(c):  In accordance with §7(C)(iii) of the Original Grant referenced above between the 

State of Colorado, acting by and through the Colorado Department of Local Affairs, and Grantee's Name 

(“Grantee”), the State hereby approves the True-Up Budget Proposal listed on the attached revised Budget for §6.2 

of Exhibit B.  Section 6.2 of Exhibit B of the Original Grant is hereby deleted and replaced with the attached §6.2 

of Exhibit B.  All references to §6.2 of Exhibit B in the Original Grant shall refer to the attached Exhibit.  True-Up 

Budget Proposals shall not increase the Grant Funds. 

 

3) Effective Date. The effective date of this Option Letter is upon approval of the State Controller or Insert start date, 

whichever is later. 

 

STATE OF COLORADO 

John W. Hickenlooper GOVERNOR 
Colorado Department of Local Affairs 

 

 

By: Reeves Brown, Executive Director 

 

Date: _________________________ 

ALL CONTRACTS REQUIRE APPROVAL BY THE STATE CONTROLLER 
 

CRS §24-30-202 requires the State Controller to approve all State contracts. This Option Letter is not valid until 

signed and dated below by the State Controller or delegate. Grantee is not authorized to begin performance until such 

time. If Grantee begins performing prior thereto, the State of Colorado is not obligated to pay Grantee for such 

performance or for any goods and/or services provided hereunder. 
 

STATE CONTROLLER 

Robert Jaros, CPA 

By: ____________________________________ 
Barbara M. Casey, Controller Delegate 

 

Date: ___________________ 

 

O
rig

in
al
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t



CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  09-2015 
 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AMENDMENT # 1 TO THE GRANT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE STATE OF COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL AFFAIRS AND THE 
CITY OF EVANS FOR THE COMPLETION OF THE DESIGN OF A WASTEWATER 
TREATMENT PLANT BY ALTERING THE FUNDING SOURCE FOR SUCH GRANT 
 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans, Colorado, pursuant to Colorado 
statute and the Evans City Charter, is vested with the authority of administering the affairs of the 
City of Evans, Colorado; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Evans and the State of Colorado Department of Local Affairs 
previously entered into a contract titled “Grant Agreement Between State of Colorado 
Department of Local Affairs and City of Evans” (“the Grant Agreement”) for completion of the 
design of a wastewater treatment plant; and 
 
 WHEREAS, following execution of the Grant Agreement, the parties discovered that the 
Grant Agreement had inadvertently been assigned to the wrong funding source, specifically 
indicating that the grant funds would come from the Local Government Severance Tax Fund 
(C.R.S. 39-29-110); and 
 
 WHEREAS, it was the State’s intent that the grant funds come from the Federal Mineral 
Leasing Fund (C.R.S. 34-63-101); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties to the Grant Agreement are in agreement that this error should 
be corrected prior to the receipt or processing of any payment reimbursement requests; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties have drafted Amendment #1 to the Grant Agreement, a copy of 
which is attached hereto; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Amendment #1 corrects the error by amending the Grant Agreement and 
all associated Exhibits and correspondence to reflect the correct and intended source of Grant 
Funds. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Amendment #1 to the Grant Agreement between State of Colorado and City of Evans for 
completion of the design of a wastewater treatment plant, as attached to this resolution, is hereby 
approved by the City Council of the City of Evans. 
 
 
 



 
 

 2 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF EVANS ON THIS 17th DAY OF MARCH, 2015. 
 
 
ATTEST:   CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
__________________________________  ______________________________ 
Raegan Robb, City Clerk John L. Morris, Mayor 
 
 
 



 
 

  
 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
DATE: March 17, 2015 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 10.B 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Grant Award for Middle South Platte River 

Watershed Coordinator  
 
PRESENTED BY: Chad Reischl, City Planner 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
As a result of the 2013 flood, special CDBG Disaster Recovery (CDBG – DR) grant funds have 
been made available to support watershed coalitions and watershed resiliency planning.           
Last year the City of Evans was awarded a grant from the Colorado Water Conservation Board 
for the drafting of a South Platte River Restoration Master Plan and the creation of the Middle 
South Platte River Alliance.  In order to further the recommendations of the Master Plan, 
continue community engagement, and build the Alliance into an organization capable of 
supporting and implementing a wide range of flood resiliency initiatives, the City of Evans 
applied for funds in the amount of $97,000 via a CDBG-DR grant to cover this position. The 
City has been awarded the grant money and we are asking that Council approve the grant 
contract so that the hiring process may begin.  
 

BACKGROUND: 

This is the State of Colorado’s second round of CDBG-DR funding.  

The City is currently working with CDM-Smith on the drafting of a South Platte River 
Restoration Master Plan.  As this Master Plan is not regulatory in nature, crosses jurisdictional 
boundaries and involves a diverse group of stakeholders, many of which are outside of the Evans 
city limits, the Middle South Platte River Alliance was created as an alliance of stakeholders who 
will advocate for the implementation of the plan’s recommendations. This alliance, once 
established legally, may also be able to apply for project funding sources that are not available to 
city governments.  In the interim the City of Evans is serving as the fiscal agent for the alliance 
as well as handling all the staffing and budgeting details. 

In order to advance watershed planning in the river and stream corridors affected by last year’s 
floods, the Department of Local Affairs is now issuing CDBG-DR funding for the hiring of 
Watershed Coordinators.  These Watershed coordinators are intended to be full-time employees 
who are fully engaged in coalition building, community engagement and education, and project 
management.   Upon approval of the grant award, the City of Evans will hire a full-time 
employee to take on these tasks thus freeing up planning staff for other more localized planning 
projects.   At some point during the life of the grant, the Watershed Coordinator will work with 



 
 

the Alliance to become a legal entity in a position to hire staff and handle all of the 
administrative details itself. 

The grant is for a maximum of 18 months.  At that time it may be possible to renew the position 
for another 18 months depending on the status of the Alliance and the work load of the 
Coordinator at that time. It is our vision that the Watershed Coordinator works to establish 
MSPRA as its own legal and fiscal entity within the first 18 month window and that they, 
themselves, might apply for the second round of funds.     

 
FINANCIAL: 
While the watershed coordinator’s salary and benefits will be fully covered by this grant it is 
expected that the city will need to incur some added expenses for equipment, supplies, travel and 
training.  Costs are expected to be no more than $9,000 over the term of the grant. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
  
The City of Evans staff recommends that the City Council approve the grant award for the 
MSPRA Watershed Coordinator. 
 
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  
 
“I move to approve and accept the CDBG-DR grant award for the Watershed Coordinator.” 
 
“I move to deny the reception of the CDBG-DR grant award for the Watershed Coordinator” 



 
   City Manager    

Monitoring Report 
March 17, 2015 

 
Below is a compellation of updates and projects that are either new  

or have changed since the last City Council meeting. 
 

 
 City Manager 

FLOOD RECOVERY - We are transitioning to a new manager for our Flood Recovery Team. Former Evans Fire Protection 
District Chief, Warren Jones, will be headed off to the joys of retirement in mid-March. I have appointed Community 
Development Manager, Zach Ratkai, as the new Flood Recovery Manager for the next 24 months. Zach is looking forward to 
the project and the challenges it will bring. He and the entire Flood Recovery Team are working hard to repair the 
infrastructure damaged in the flood. 
 
LEGISLATIVE SEASON – The Colorado General Assembly is in full session and City staff is working with the Colorado 
Municipal League (CML) to stay informed on pending legislation that will impact our community. The City’s Legislative Team 
monitors legislation from its introduction all the way through the final vote. CML is a valuable partner in monitoring bills 
and lobbying for either opposition or support. Our focus is on “local control” as we believe the residents and elected 
officials of Evans know what’s best for our community. One potential bill of specific interest so far is one that would limit 
the effectiveness or eliminate the opportunity for cities and towns to use an Urban Renewal Agency to assist in blight clean-
up and enhance economic development efforts. The City will oppose such legislation if the bill gets presented. 
 

 Customer Service 
The Customer Service Unit would like to welcome Kimberly Doss on Monday, March 16, 2015.  Kim will be our new 
Customer Service Administrator.  She has numerous years of Administrative Specialist experience which will add to our 
great team.   
 

 Economic Development 
South Platte River Corridor Master Plan – Just prior to the 2013 flood event, the City had contracted with Rock Creek Design 
to create a master plan for the South Platte River Corridor.  Due to the amount of post flood clean-up work and some 
contractor issues outside of our control, the plan was never completed. While we would like to resurrect this project, staff 
recognizes that since there are much more pressing needs at this time, there is not adequate funding to do so anytime 
soon. After looking at several existing city plans, and recognizing the work that is being included as part of current planning 
efforts (i.e. Riverside Park Master Plan, Evans Riverside Neighborhood Master Plan and South Platte River Restoration 
Master Plan), City Planner Chad Reischl has determined that a good portion of the work for this master planning effort is 
already out there and just needs to be pulled together into a single cohesive document.  As such, he is looking at the 
possibilities of pulling this data together into a “Staff Report” that could be used to give the city a short-term vision for the 
Platte Corridor in the coming years. Ultimately a formal plan with full public participation should be undertaken by the city, 
but that effort may be at least 3-5 years out at this time. This report could guide any trail/park planning in the next few 
years if and when opportunities arise to acquire property and/or easements, fix/upgrade roads in the corridor, or work with 
other partners to create a regional trail along the South Platte River.   

 
 Finance 

  The entire finance department has been working hard with our external financial auditors who are currently on site. We 
anticipate they will wrap up their on-site work this week, and over the next 6 weeks will be finalizing our audit and financial 
statements to be presented to Council at the end of April. We recognize the additional work that is also asked of other 
departments and continue to thank those involved for their timely assistance and understanding as we devote our 
attention to this project. After the completion of this audit, we will be issuing an RFP for audit service in future years. We 
have had the current firm complete the audit for a number of years, and we will be doing our due diligence in selecting the 
proper firm for the coming years.  



 
 Police  

Hiring Process – we have completed oral-board interviews and compiled a list of candidates to proceed. We currently have 
six openings. This candidate pool is a strong one and we have hopes to fill at least 4-5 of the positions. A final list will be 
compiled in early to mid June. 
 

 Public Works 
 

OPERATIONS • WATER-Swaps; We’ve have had a few errors and are working diligently on correcting them. All in all 
we are making good headway.  

• NP WATER-Have been on hold due to weather 
• FLEET-Have all PW vehicles ordered to this point 

ENGINEERING • Working with Ditesco on WW design coordination & needs 
• Continuing Civil Engineer hiring process. 
• Will be assisting with GIS interviews in the following two weeks 

WASTE 
WATER 

• Attended meetings with design engineers for the WW Project. 

PARKS •    Working with Mike on Vineyard Park pond overflow line. 
•    Have started to receive bids for playground equipment for City and Village. 
•    Working on Village Park restroom remodels and pavilion replacement. 

 
 
 



 
City Council Calendar 

March-April 2015 

 

March Event Location Time 

12 Flood Recovery Taskforce Evans City Complex 6:00 PM - 8:00 PM 

12 85 Coalition Meeting  Eaton Town Hall 
221 1st Street 

Begins at 6:30 PM 

14 Evans Chamber Dinner Evans Moose Lodge Begins at 6:00 PM 

17 City Council Tour of  Prairie 
Heights Middle School  

65th Ave & 37th St. 
Evans 

6:00 PM - 7:00 PM 

17 Regular City Council Meeting Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

22 Public Tour of Prairie Heights 
Middle School 

65th Avenue & 37th 
Street , Evans 

1:30 PM -  3:30 PM 

22 Evans VFW Americanism Event Evans VFW 2:00 PM - 4:00 PM 

31 City Council Work Session on 
Strategic Planning  

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

MARCH 2015 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30 31     

April Event Location Time 

2 NFRMPO Council Meeting TBD 6:00 PM - 8:30 PM 

7 City Council Work Session &  
Regular City Council Meeting 

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

16 Flood Recovery Taskforce Evans City Complex 6:00 PM - 8:00 PM 

16 85 Coalition Meeting  Riverside Library & 
3700 Golden Street  

Begins at 6:30 PM 

21 City Council Work Session &  
Regular City Council Meeting 

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

27 City Council Joint Meeting with 
the Evans Fire District  

Evans City Complex Begins at 6:00 PM 

18-19 City Spring Clean Up Days 3323 1st Avenue, 
Evans 

8:00 AM - 4:00 PM 

25-26 City Spring Clean Up Days 3323 1st Avenue, 
Evans 

8:00 AM - 4:00 PM 

APRIL 2015 
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30   

http://www.nfrmpo.org/Calendar/Event.aspx�
http://www.evanscolorado.gov/publicworks/spring-clean-2015�
http://www.evanscolorado.gov/publicworks/spring-clean-2015�

	CALL TO ORDER
	PLEDGE
	ROLL CALL
	PROCLAMATION
	Americanism Day Proclamation

	SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS
	AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	CONSENT AGENDA
	8.A Staff Report - Approval of Minutes
	Regular Meeting Draft Minutes 03.03.2015

	OLD BUSINESS
	9.A Staff Memo - oil and gas lease with Mineral Resources-2.24.15
	Ordinance - Oil and Gas Lease
	City of Evans OGL- Mineral Resources-spk

	NEW BUSINESS
	10.A Staff Report Grant DOLA WWTF_Amendment
	Amendement Grant Contract DOLA WWTF
	Grant Contract DOLA WWTF - Original
	Res - amending grant funding source for design of WWTF-3.17.15

	10.B Staff Report - MSPRA Watershed Coordinator

	REPORTS
	City Manager
	03.17.15 Monitoring Report

	City Attorney

	AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	ADJOURNMENT
	CALENDAR
	CC Calendar-March & April




